CV-2016-09-3928 ) © 'GALLAGHER, PAUL 11/07/2018 16:58:14 PM DPEL Page 1 of 142

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

SUMMIT COUNTY, CHIO
MEMBER WILLIAMS, et al. )}  Case No. CV-2016-09-3928
)
Plaintiffs, )
}  KNR Defendants’ Motion to Compel
VS. }  Plaintiff Matthew Johnson to Comply
}  with Discovery
Kisling, Nestico & Redick, LLC, et al. )
)
Defendants, )

Defendants Alberto Nestico, Esq., Robert Redick, Esq., and Kisling, Nestico & Redick,
LLC (“KNR”) hereby respectfully request this Honorable Court to compel Plaintiff Matthew
Johnson to produce certain documents and otherwise comply with discovery. On July 6, 2018, the
Defendants deposed Mr. Johnson, the putative Class “C” representative, to determine the factual
basis of his claim, In an oufright brazen disregard for the judicial system, Mr. Johnson:

a. Either refused to answer questions, provided flippant and disrespectful answers, or —
when all else failed — claimed the July 4™ fireworks two days before his deposition
caused him to “forget” the answers;

b. Claimed he could have provided answers, but for purposely leaving documents and
handwritten notes he reviewed to prepare for the deposition on his kitchen counter,

but stated he would “study” before trial so he could tell a jury the basis;

C. Failed to bring ANY documents responsive to the duces tecum because it was just a
- “request” (and still refuses to produce the documents nearly four months later)';

d. Became hostile when asked to identify evidence supporting his claims;
e. Testified he would not withdraw claims even if he learned the claims were false; and

f. Called counsel for KNR a “dumb fuck” for even asking if Plaintiff would withdraw
claims not supported by evidence.

1plaintiff testified he did not know he was allowed to bring documents to deposition. Plaintiff’s counsel claimed he
did not bring documents because counsel “didn’t advise him to” and “a notice of deposition duces tecum ... isn’t a
thing under Ohio law”. (Johnson dep., p. 129, 11. 5-6, 13-17). Once advised the Civil Rules allow for this vehicle of
discovery, counsel then claimed the documents have “little or no relevance” and Mr. Johnson was being withdrawn
as a Plaintiff. However, gven if withdrawn, a counterclaim will remain, making Mr. Johuson a party and a witness.
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This Motion is supported by the attached Memorandum in Support, which is incorporated

herein by reference.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Thomas P. Mannion
Thomas P. Mannion #0062551
1375 E 9™ St., Ste. 2250
Cleveland, OH 44114

Phone: (216) 344-9467

Fax: (216) 344-9241

Tom.Mannion(@lewisbrisbois.com
Counsel for Defendant KNR
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

SUMMIT COUNTY, OHIO
MEMBER WILLIAMS, et al. ) CaseNo. CV-2016-09-3928
)
Plaintiffs, ) Judge James Brogan
)
VS, )  Memorandum in Support of Defendants’
)  Motion to Compel Plaintiff Matthew
Kisling, Nestico & Redick, LLC, et al. ) Johnson to Comply with Discovery
)
Defendants. )

I. INTRODUCTION

Plaintiff Johnson’s failure to produce the documents he reviewed to prepare for his
deposition essentially rendered the deposition meaningless, as he demonstrated a “lack of memory”
on nearly every pertinent question relating to his claims or the basis of his claims. Moreover,
Plaintiff refused to answer numerous clearly relevant questions.”

Defendants have repeatedly attempted to resolve this discovery dispute without seeking
couri intervention.’ However, now four months after the deposition, Plamntiffs still have not
produced a single document responsive to the Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum and refuse to
make Mr. Johnsen available for his continuation deposition.

Accordingly, Defendants respectfiully move this Honorable Court for an Order compelling
Plaintiff Johnson to produce:

(a) Any and all documents he reviewed in preparation for his deposition;

* Specifically, Attorney Pattakos instructed Plaintiff Johnson not to answer questions 33 times throughout the
deposition. (See Johnson Dep. pp. 18-20, 53-54, 56-63, 99, 100, 109, 113, 116, 203, 204, 209, 210, 247).
Defendants’ reserve the right to address issues relating to the unanswered questions if they are not properly
answered at Plaintitf Johnson’s continuation deposition. However, these issues are not addressed within the present
Motion.

? See Exhibit A: compiled correspondence from Defendants’ counsel to Plaintiff's demonstrating extensive attempts
to resolve without Court intervention, which will be discussed at length within,
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(b)  Any and all documents supporting Plaintiff Johnson’s claim relating to the
loan with Liberty Capital and the alleged “kickbacks” between Defendants
and Liberty Capital;

(c)  Anyand all documents Plaintiff Johnson agreed during deposition to provide
to his attorney, including, but not limited to: documents relating to
Defendants’ alleged ownership interest in Liberty Capital (Johnson Dep., p.
77, 1. 1 — p. 78, 1. 10) and the notes prepared and reviewed by Plaintiff
Johnson days before his deposition (/d. p. 72, 1. 8);

(d)  Any and all documents relating to communications between Plaintiff
Johnson and KNR at any time, including, but not limited to emails between
Plaintiff Johnson and KNR, which Plaintiff Johnson explicitly admitted are
in existence (Jd. at p. 184, 1. 23); and
(e} all other documents responsive to the Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum.”
Defendants also request an Order compelling Plaintiffs to Produce Mr. Johnson for his

. continuation deposition and to answer pertinent questions, as addressed below.

IL. SUMMARY OF FACTS

The Defendants have been forced to defend against Plaintiffs’ fabricated claims for more
than 18 months.” In doing so, Defendants submitted written discovery to Plaintiff Johnson to flush
out the evidence purportedly supporting the Class “C” allegations, but the answers were essentially
non-responsive on these issues. Accordingly, the Defendants noticed Plaintiff Johnson’s deposition,
again with hopes of determining the purported factual basis for his claims. Unfortunately, neither
Plaintift' Johnson nor his counsel meaningfully participated in the deposition process. In fact,

Plaintiff Johnson’s deposition was nothing short of preposterous, as highlighted below.

* Although not addressed at length in this Motion, Defendants reserve the right to address other issues pertaining to
Plaintiffs’ discovery responses, including Plaintiff Johnson’s responses regarding his drug use, relevant criminal
history, income tax documents, and any other matter that arises over the course of discovery. The unanswered
questions regarding Plaintiff Johnson’s drug use are of particular relevance, as his drug usage may have had an
effect on his memory.

*Plaintiff Johnson was first included as a potential Plaintiff in the Motion for Leave to File Second Amended
Complaint, which was filed on March 22, 2017.
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A, Plaintiffs Represented to the Court the Basis for a Second Amended Complaint
was “Newly Discovered Evidence” from Plaintiff Matthew Johnson

On March 22, 2017, the Plaintiffs filed a Motion for Leave to File Second Amended
Complaint. (See Docket 03/22/2017). The proposed amended pleading sought to add a new class of
individuals, namely Class C, based on the following representation from Plaintiffs’ counsel:

The proposed amendment is based on newly discovered evidence,

including from ... Mr. Johnson, who contacted Plaintiffs’ counsel
after the filing of the original complaint in this action. (/d at

paragraph 1),

As such, the Class C allegations contained in the Second Amended Complaint should have
mirrored these alleged “newly discovered” facts. Instead, the Second Amended Complaint
contained a fiction as compared to the testimony of Mr. Johnson. The scenario presented by
Plaintiffs’ counsel in the amended pleadings is actually opposite the facts claimed by Mr, Johnson.

B. Plaintiilf Johnson Properly Served with Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum

The KNR Defendants properly served a Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum upon Plaintiff
Johnson on May 31, 2018, with the deposition originally being scheduled for July 2, 2018.° {See
Exhibit “C” and Docket 05/31/2018). The Duces Tecum requested production of the following
documents:

1. All documents relating to income earned by Plaintiff from January 1, 2013

- to the present, including, but not limited to, Plaintiff’s federal and state
income tax forms, W-2 forms, 1099 forms, payroll forms, and payroll

stubs.
2. All documents relating to communications between Plaintiff and KNR at
any time.
3. All documents relating to communications between Plaintiff and Nestico
at any time,

®Thereafter, the deposition was pushed back again, until July 6, 2018. In response, Defendants’ served an Amended
Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum on Plamtiff Johnson on June 19, 2018, The duces tecum was identical to the duces
tecum included in the May 31, 2018, Notice of Deposition.
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4, All documents relating to communications between Plaintiff and Redick at
any fime.

5. Any and all documents you have reviewed in preparation for your
deposition.

The Notice was proper under the Ohio Civil Rules of Procedure.” The Plaintiffs agreed to
the date and time of the deposition. And, the Plaintiffs did not object to the document request
portion of the Notice of Deposition. Despite this, Plaintiffs’ counsel and Plaintiff Johnson simply
refused to comply.

Approximately half way through the deposition, Attorney Pattakos offered a new excuse for
failure to comply with the Duces Tecum request:

Attorney Pattakos: I don’t know why you’re asking the witness about this or why
you even served a notice of deposition duces tecum, which
isn’t even a thing under Ohio law. So, you know, let’s move
on. Please. (Johnson Dep. p. 129,11. 17-18.)

Of course, Ohio Civil Rules 30 and 34 estéblish without question the validity of this
common discovery tool. Even after being advised of his “miscénception”, however, Attorney
Pattakos stiil refuses to comply with the duces fecum.

C. Plaintiff Johnson Failed tolProduce even a Single Responsive Docwmenit

In blatant disregard of the properly served Deposition Duces Tecum, Plaintiff Johnson

arrived at his deposition empty handed. Plaintiff Johnson testified:

Q: Okay. And did this document, Exhibit 1, ask you to bring anything with you

today? Look at page 3.
A Yeah.
Q: Did you bring any documents today in response to this notice?
Al No sir.

"Ohio Civil Rule 30(B)(4) provides a deposition duces tecum request is valid for a party as well as if the request is
made in compliance with Civil Rule 34, which this was, having given the Plaintiff even more than the 28 days
required by Ohio Civil Rule 34.
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Q: Did you provide your attorney with any documents that are responsive to
these requests?

Al No, sir.  (Johnson Dep., p.124, 1. 20-25, p.125,1. 8.)
Ag an example of Plaintiffs’ disregard for the judicial process, he initially claimed he didn’t
bring any documents regarding his communications with KNR, which was requested in Duces

Tecum request 3, because the duces tecum was just “a request”. Plaintiff Johnson testified:

Q: What documents did you bring today relating to communications between
plaintiff and KNR at any time?

A: I didn’t.

Q: Is there a reason?

A No.

Q: Didn’t you think it was important to comply with the request?

A: It was a request.

Q: I'm sorry?

A It was a request. (Johnson Dep., p. 128, 11. 10-25; p. 129, 1l. 1-2).
Plaintiffs” counsel then attempted to save his client by claiming he didn’t bring documents
because counsel did not advise him to comply with the request:
Q: Why didn’t you bring anything responsive to this request?
Mr. Pattakos: Because I didn’t advise him to, Tom. Let’s move on.

A: Yeah, [ do what my lawyer tells me to, man.  (Johnson Dep., p. 129, 1. 3-
7).
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Plaintiff Johnson’s Failure to Produce Documents and Indifference to the
Justice System Substantially Interfered with Defendants’ Attempt to Obtain
Meaningful Testimony

Plaintiff Johnson’s shortcomings did not stop there, as his failure to produce the documents

requested in Deposition Duces Tecum Request No, 5 proved to interfere with his ability to testify to

a slew of critical matters. The following testimony accurately depicts Johnson’s numerous

shortcomings:

Q.

4317-1433-4586.1

Okay. So do you think that a class representative should be able to answer questions
in front of a jury and a judge or at a deposition in order to represent the other class
members?

If I had known I was able to bring my notes, I would be fine. (Johnson Dep. p. 133,
1. 16-22)

The information that is written down in those documents, did you know you had
forgotten that information when you left to come here today?

Not intentionally. I mean, my mind is drawing a blank because I'm not a very good
test taker. (Id. at p. 135, IL 4-8)

Okay: By the way, what is your responsibility as a class representative as it relates to

settlement? Do you know?

I have that answer in my notes. Does that help? (/. at 160, 11. 9-13)

Well, do you know as a class representative whether you can sue a lawyer for
damages for an alleged ethical violation as opposed to actually being damages
financially?

Like in a separate suit or?

In this suit.

I don’t know. I would have to review if that’s in my notes or not. (7d. at 219, 1. 4-11)
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Q: And what evidence did you have that KNR defendant knew KNR clients would be
unable to repay their loans until their lawsuit resolved? Did you have any?

Al Yeah.
Q: What was it?
A I don’t remember man. Like I said, I have notes at home. (/d. at 242, 11. 3-10).
Markedly, without his “notes” that he reviewed in preparation of his deposition, Plaintiff
Johnson even had difficulty describing the putative Class C, to which he aspires to be the class
representative:
Q: In what — in your — what’s your understanding of what Class C is?

A: I could have told you Tuesday when 1 reviewed everything. But the
fireworks just blew my mind away. Sorry. {(Jd. at p. 132, 11. 17-21).

When pressed further, Plaintiff Johnson reverted from “fireworks amnesia™ to simply being
““too overwhelmed” by the deposition process to explain his claims. (/4. at p. 133, 11. 4-13). When he
realized the Defendants would not allow fireworks or feigned memory problems -to derail the
deposition, he claimed the responsive information was contained in notes.and documents that he
reviewed to prepare:for the deposition but then left on his counter at home. (/d. at p. 133, 11, 16-22).
After lengthy game-playing, Plaintiff Johnson finally adm_itted his only claim against the KNR
Defendants is an allegation that Attorney Alberto “Rob” Nestico owned Liberty Capital.®

In addition to the nature of the claim, Defendants’ counsel attempted to elicit testimony
relating to the factual basis or evidence for such claims. Rather than provide answers, however,
Plaintiff Johnson resorted to berating counsel, “forgetting” the answers, providing evasive answers,

or, in some instances, simply refusing to answer the question.

®Plaintiff Johnson testified: “The main reason that we are here is because of his ownership interest in Liberty Capital
toans. Period. That’s it. That’s why we’re here.,” (Johnson Dep., p. 136, 1l. 3-6). Plaintiff Johnson further testified
he was not complaining the loan interest was too high, but rather that the “sole owner of the loan company was an
attorney [Rob Nestico]”. (Johnson Dep., p. 187, 11. 23-25, p. 188, 11. 1-7).
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The closest Plaintiff Johnson came to identifying a factual basis for his claim were vague
references to emails of which he could not remember the content, When asked to describe the
substance of the emails, Plaintiff Johnson testified: “Well, let me pull up my photographic
memory.” (Id. at p. 68, 1. 23-25.) When reminded he did not have to remember the email or other
documents word for word, his typical answer was: T don’t remember, it’s in "my notes. (See
generally, Johnson Dep. pp. 69-70 and many other references. )

When Plaintiff Johnson was unable to identify actual facts to support his claims,
Defendants inquired as to whether he would withdraw those claims he discovered were not true.
Incredibly, Plaintiff Johnson refused, testifying:

Q. If you find out that your factual allegation that Mr. Nestico has a financial
interst or ownership interst in Liberty Capital is in fact false, will you
agree to withdraw the allegation?

No.

Why not?

Because that’s my answer.

Even if it’s not true, you’ll pursue it?

Why not?

O o o »

And do you think that would be good advice for you to give to other
prospective class members?

A, Absolutely. (Johnson Dep., p. 190,-11. 6-19).

Shortly thereafter, Plaintiff Johnson testified “there is evidence” of kickbacks but he does
not “remember all of it.” (Id. at p. 192, 11. 19-24). When asked his intenti;:)ns in maintining this
lawsuit if he finds out no such evidence exists, Plaintiff Johnson testified:

Q: If you find - -

Mr. Pattakos: - - ridiculous. Please move on.
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- - out that there’s no evidence to support the claim, will you
withdraw it?

No, sir.
Okay.

Dumb fuck.

(Johnson dep. p. 193,11, 11-18).

In utter disbelief as to Plaintiff Johnson’s testimony, Defendants’ counsel continued to

attempt to discover the basis for his allegations and whether he would withdraw such allegations

if proven false. Plaintiff Johnson incredulously continued down the same path of obstruction:

Q.

A.

Q.

A.

Well, if you find out there was no kickback, will you withdraw this
claim?

No, sir.

Mr. Pattakos: We already told you we would, Tom,
Why not?
Because.

You would pursue this claim about a kickback even if there was no
kickback? -

Yeah. -

(Id. atp. 240, 11. 17-25, p. 241, 1. 1).

Plaintiff Johnson also testified he intends to pursue claims KNR made false representations

regardless of the truth of his claim:

4317-1433-4586.1

Q.

A

Q:

Yet in paragraph 124 you’re claiming in court document that this
was a false representation. Do you still maintain that?

Yes, sir.

What was false about it?

11
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Al I don’t remember.

Q: And if that statement is actually true, would you agree to withdraw
that claim?

A: No.
Q: You wouldn’t withdraw that one either, even if'it’s not true?
A No, sir. (Johnson Dep., p. 244, 11. 12-25).
E. Plaintiff’s Substantive Testimony Directly Contradicts the Class C Allegations
When Plaintiff Johnson finally provided factual testimony regarding his interactions with
KNR and his loan with Liberty Capital, the testimony directly contradicted the Class C factual
allegations. These contradictions are critical, especially when considering the Plaintiffs’ repeated
requests to amend the Complaint and repeated failures to produce evidence to support the
allegations. As a reminder, Plaintiffs” counsel only obtained leave to add the Class C allegations by
representing to the Court that he obtained “newly discovered” facts from Mr. Johnson. Thus, the
amended pleading facts should have mirrored the facts provided by Plaintiff Johnson.” To the
contrary, and even- giving: Plaintiffs’ counsel the benefit of the doubt as to his motives, no
reasonable interpretation can explain the chasm of differences between the facts pleaded by
Attorney Pattakos and the facts established by his own client’s testimony. The facts according to
Johnson vs. the facts according to Pattakos warrant comparison:
Defendants “Recommended” and “Induced” Johnson to take out a Loan

Pleadings: The Defendants “recommended” and “induced” Plaintiff Johnson to take out
a $250 loan with Liberty Capital.

Testimony:  No attorney ever recommended a loan. Mr, Johnson approached KNR about
a loan, not the other way around. Plaintiff testified he “may have” heard the
name Preferred Capital, not Liberty Capital, by a non-lawyer when he first

Pursuant to the Ohio Civil Rules, counsel is under a duty to only assert facts to which he had “knowledge,
information, and belief there is good ground to support.” (Emphasis added.) Civ.R. 11.

4817-1433-4586.1 12

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts




CV-2016-09-3928 GALLAGHER, PAUL 11/07/2018 16:58:14 PM DPEL Page 13 of 142

retained KNR in February, 2012. He admitted KNR assisted him obtaining
an “interest free” “med pay” from the insurance carrier rather than an interest
bearing loan. Then, when *“med pay” was exhausted, he approached KNR
staff member Jenna requesting a “financial boost”. He was told: “The only
option available is for you to take out a loan against your case, but you
have to pay inhterest on it.. so essentially you’re paying money to borrow
money. But if this need is necessary, | can definitely get you the

information.” (Johnson Dep. at pp. 185-187).

In addition, when asked to identify a single recommendation from KNR to
take a loan with Liberty Capital, Mr. Johnson provided a litany of evasive
and contradictory answers, as contained in Attached Exhibit “D”. None of
the above answers or those contained in Exhibit “D” are even close to the
allegations contained in the Class C allegations.

Representation concerning “Best Source of Funding” for Johnson
Pleadings: Defendants induced Plaintiff Johnson to take out a loan with Liberty Capital
' by representing Liberty Capital was the “best source of loan funding” and

“without disclosing that lower-cost sources of loans were available.”

Testimony:  Plaintiff Johnson could not remember anyone at KNR making a statement re:
“best source of loan funding.” Plaintiff Johnson testified:

Q. Did anybody at KNR tell you Liberty Capital was the best source
of loan funding?

A, I don’t remember. (Johnson Dep., p. 242, 1. 24 253, 1. 12; See
also, Exhibit D),

Plaintiff Johnson’s Ability o Repay Loan before Case Settled

Pleadings: Defendants knew Plaintiff Johnson likely could not repay the loan before the
case settled,

Testimony:  Johnson claims he PAID THE LOAN shortly after it was taken. (Johnson
Dep.,p. 8,1.6;p. 241, 1. 14),

Class Members® Ability to Repay Loan before Case Settled

Pleadings: Defendants knew class members to whom Liberty Capital loans were
recommended likely could not repay the loan before the case settled.

Testimony:  Plaintiff Johnson testified he had no idea about other clients’ loans. (Johnson
Dep., pp. 241-242).
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Concealment of Better Loan Sources
Pleadings: Defendants concealed better loan sources from Plaintiff Johnson;

Testimony:  Plaintiff admitted HE KNEW BETTER LOAN SOURCES EXISTED.
{Johnson dep., p. 276, 11. 21-25; see also, Exhibit D).

Defendants Failed to Disclose Kickbacks and/or Ownership Interest

Pleadings: Defendants failed to disclose their kickbacks, financial interest, and/or
ownership interest in Liberty Capital.

Testimony:  Plaintiff Johnson COULD NOT IDENTIFY ANY EVIDENCE of
kickbacks, ownership interest, or other financial interest. (Johnson Dep., p.
238, 1. 6-24). :

Settlement Memorandum

Pleadings: Defendants’ misrepresentations and concealments were material in getling
clients to approve Settlement Memorandum,

Testimony:  Johmson DID NOT HAVE A SETTLEMENT MEMORANDUM with
Defendants, and JOHNSON’S LOAN PAYMENTS WERE NOT
DEDUCTED FROM SETTLEMENT PROCEEDS. (Johnson Dep., p. 262,
1. 4-5).

Timing of Loan Repayment

Pleadings: Plaintiff Johnson paid his loan back with fees and accrued interest after
approximately one year.

Testimony:  Plaintiff Johnson claims he started paying the loan back WITHIN ONE
MONTH of obtaining the loan. At $100 or more a month repayment on a
$250 loan, he would have repaid the loan well before one year (assuming his
testimony is truthful). (Johnson Dep., p. 90, 11. 13-15).

Prohibition of Disbursement of Settlement Proceeds te Plaintiff Johnson

Pleadings: KNR was prohibited from disbursing any proceeds to Plaintiff Johnson until
his Liberty Capital loan was paid.

Testimony:  Plaintiff Johnson’s case was settled by Attorney Jack Morrison, not KNR.
NO PROHIBITIONS existed on Jack Morrison as it related to disbursing
proceeds only after repayment of the loan. In fact, no loan payments,
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principal, interest, fees, or otherwise, were deducted from Plaintiff Johnson’s
settlement. (Johnson Dep., p. 262, 11. 4-5).

Defendants Payment to Themselves Before Disbursing Settlement Proceeds to Johnson
Pleadings: Defendants paid themselves from KNR clients’ lawsuit proceeds before ever
disbursing any funds to clients, without breaching its obligations to Liberty
Capital.
Testimony:  Defendants were never paid any fees or expenses on Plaintiff Johnson’s case.
: Defendants did not receive repayment for fees incurred or quantum meruit
for services rendered.

Alleged False Representation

- Pleadings: The loan agreement contained the following false representation by a KNR
attorney: 1 am not endorsing or recommending this transaction.

Testimony:  Plaintiff Johnson testified:
Q: Okay. If you look at page 34, paragraph 124. And in the middle of
this, it says that the KNR attorney stated “l am not endorsing or

recommending this transaction.” Did I read that correctly?

A Correct. (Johnson Dep., p. 242, 11. 11-16).

Q: So that would be referencing KNR was not endorsing or
recommending this fransaction, correct?

Yes, sir.
And you initialed that knowing that, truc?

Yeg, sir.

e or L ¥

And it then goes on to say, “l have reviewed the contract and all
costs and fees have been disclosed to my client.” And those were
disclosed to you, correct?

>

Yes, sir.

Q: “including the annualized rate of return applied to calulate the
amount to be repaid by my client.” That was also disclosed to you,
true? It’s in the document, true?
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A Yes, sir.
Yet in paragraph 124 you’re claiming in a court document that this
was a false representation. Do you still maintain that?
A Yes, sir.
Q: What was false about it?
A: I don’t remember,
Q: You can’t tell us what was false about it?
A No, sir.
Q: And if that Statement is actually true, would you agree to withdraw
that claim?
A: No.
You wouldn’t withdraw that one either, even if it’s not frue?
No, sir. (Johnson Dep., p. 243, [1. 17-22, p. 244, 11. 12-25).
Advertisements
Pleadings: IKNR’s advertisements and mailers constituted “endorsing” or
“recommending” loans despite the representation by a KNR attorney to the
contrary.

Testimony:  Plamtiff Johnson did not rely on advertisements or mailers. (Johnson Dep.,
p- 265,11, 8-12).

- The above comparison raises a perplexing dilemma: If the amendéd pleadings were based
on “newly discovered evidence” from Matthew Johnson, then why is the version of facts in the
amended pleadings so vastly different from the “facts” disclosed by Plaintiff Johnson? The only
reasonable explanation is that Plaintiffs’ counsel came up with his own version of facts by making
nefaricus inference upon nefarious inference from internal KNR emails, which he obtained illegally

long before the amended pleadings. Attorney Pattakos came up with his own version of facts and
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would not be dissuaded from putting those facts in a pleading, even when the very Plaintiff
purportedly supporting those facts COMPLETELY contradicts those facts.

F. Four Months Later: Plaintiff Johnson Still Refuses to Produce the Documents

Over the course of the four-months following Plaintiff Johnson’s outlandish deposition,
Defendants’ have attempted to resolve the aforementioned discovery issues numerous times. First,
Defendants’ sent numerous extensive informal correspondences to Plaintiffs” counsel, including an
11-page letter giving defailed descriptions for the basis of each request at issue. (Jd.) After those
attempts failed, Defendants served supplemental discovery requests on Plaintiff Johnson. (Exhibit
A, October 5 supplemental discovery requests). Finally, on November 3, 2018, in a last ditch effort

© to.resolve this dispute without court intervention, Defendants sent vet another extensive letter

detailing the discovery issues. (/d.) Again, to no avail.

I, LAWAND ARGUMENT

Civ.R. 37 governs the filing of a motion to compel discovery. The Rule provides that “on
- notice-to other. parties and all affected -persons, a party may move for an order compelling
- discovery.” Civ.R. 37(A)(1). A party may move to compel a response to an interrogatory and
request for documents. See Civ.R. 37(A)(3)(a)(iii) and (iv). In addition, an evasive or incomplete
answer shall be treated as a failure to answer. See Civ.R. 37(A)4). Finally, under Civ.R.

- 37(A)Y(5)Xa), Defendants seek their legal fees and costs in having to file this motion.

-A,  No Legal Basis Ixists for Plaintiffs’ Fallure fo Produce the Requested
Documents

1. - Documents Reviewed in Preparation for Deposition (Duces Tecum Request 5)
Plaintiff Johnson admitted that he reviewed documents to prepare for deposition (Johnson
Dep., p. 72, 1l. 14-16); remained in possession of the documents (/d. at p. 72, 1. 19); took notes on

the documents and reviewed the notes in preparation of deposition (/. at p. 71, 1. 18); remained in
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possession of the notes (/d. at p. 72, 1. 1); that the notes are his “own personal notes” (/d. at p. 281,
11. 9-10); and that the notes were simply left on his counter (Id. at p. 133, 11. 24-25, p. 134, L. 1).
Thereafter, Plaintiff Johnson repeatedly testified that he could not answer questions because he did
not bring his notes to the deposition. (See Exhibit E, deposition excerpts of Plaintiff Johnson’s
numerous references to his notes and inability to testify without them.)

A party conducting a deposition is entitled to review the materials a deponent relies on
and/or uses to refresh recollection in preparation for deposition. Evid.R. 612, See also Komorowski
v. John P. Hildebrand Co., L.P.A., 8th Dist. Cuyahoga No. 101500, 2015-Ohio-1293, 426; State v.
Wayt, 83 Ohio App. 3d 848, 857, 615 N.E.2d 1107 (1992); Tartaglia v. A.W. Chesterton, C.P. No.
693514, 2009 Ohio Mise. LEXIS 1154, at *10 (Nov. 13, 2009). Under Ohio law, the Plaintifts had
a duty to provide said documents in July and the duty remains four-months later,

2. . Documents Regarding Alleged Kickbacks to KNR from Liberty Capital

In response to several questions-posed regarding the basis of the Plaintiff's claims that
“Defendants received kickback payments for every loan transaction that Liberty Capital completed
with KNR .clients”, Plaintiff’s counsel advised Plaintiff Johnson not to answer. (Johnson Dep., pp.
240-252). Eventually, when asked whether he could identify a single kickback payment to KNR for
any loan-transaction between Liberty Capital and KNR clients, Plaintiff Johnson stated “Not right
now’” and that he did not know when he planned on identifying any. (/4. at p. 251, 1. 18 —p. 252, 1,
1). Pursuant to Defendants’ Requests for Production Nos. 18 and 19, Plaintiff Johnson has a duty to
supplement his production regarding a;ny evidence of kickback payments or formally advise

Defendants’ that no such documents exist.
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3. Documents Purporting to Show Attorney Nestico Held an Ownership Interest
in Liberty Capital

Plaintiff Johnson testified he possessed evidence “on typed paper” showing Mr. Nestico had
an ownership interest in Liberty Capital. (Zd. at p. 77). He stated he would turn any such documents
over to his attorney. (Jd.) Four months and many requests later, Plaintiff Johnson has failed to
produce any such evidence, in utter disregard of his ongoing duty to supplement production.

4. Other Documents Responsive to the Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum.

In accordance with Defendants” Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum and Requests for
Production, Defendants’ respectfully request that the Court compel Plaintiff Johnson to produce
respounsive documents with respect to all oth.er enumerated requests.

-5, Question Regarding Kickback Payments on All Liberty Loan Transactions
Mr. Johnson was asked tc identify the basis for his allegation: “Defendants received
- kickback payments for every loan transaction with | Liberty Capital \Vﬁh KNR clients.” After
admitting he did not know the basis, he testified that ﬁe nonetheless knew the allegation was true.
S0, counsel inguired as to the basis {(see Johnson Dep., p. 247), and Mr, Johnson wa;s instructed not
to answer: |
Q: What's it based on, thén?
Mr. Paftalos: Objection. Matthew, don’t answer - -
Mr. Mannion: You can object - - |
Mr. Pattakos: - - the question.
Mr. Mannion: - - for the record.

(Id. atp. 247,11, 10-18).
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IvV.  CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated, Defendants” have no choice but to seck court intervention and
respecttully move this Honorable Court for an Order compelling Plaintiff Johnson to produce: (a)
Any and all documents he reviewed in preparation for his deposition; (b) Any and all documents
supporting Plaintiff Johnson’s claim relating to the Toan with Liberty Capital and the alleged
“kickbacks” between Defendants and Liberty Capital; (c) Any and all documents that Plaintiff
Johnson was asked to provide to his attorney subsequent to deposition, including, but not limited to:
documents relating to Defendants’ alleged ownership intereét in Liberty Capital and the notes
prepared and reviewed by Plaintiff Johnson days before his deposition; (d) Any and all documents

- relating to communications between Plaintiff Johﬁson and KNR at any time, including, but not
limited to emails between Plaintiff Johnson and KNR, which Plainﬁff Johnson explicitly admitted
are in existence; and (e) all other documents responsive to the Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum.
Finally, Defendants also request this Honorable Court for an Order compelling Plaintiffs to Produce

Mr. Johnson for his continuation deposition and to answer pertinent questions,

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Thomas P. Mannion - -
Thomas P. Mannion #0062551
1375 E 9" St., Ste. 2250
Cleveland, OH 44114

Phone: (216) 344-9467

Fax: (216) 344-9241
Tom.Mannion@lewisbrisbois.com
Counsel for Defendant KNR
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing was served via ordinary mail and electronic
mail to Plaintiffs’ counsel and Defendants® counsel on this 7 day of November, 2018.

/s! Thomas P. Mannion
Thomas P. Mannion #0062551
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—

From: Santos, Nellie

Sent: Friday, October Q5, 2018 1:55 PM

To: ‘Peter@jpattakoslaw.com’

Cc:’ : Mannion, Tom; Cosme, Betsy

Subject: Member Williams, et al. v. KNR, et al. Summit County No. CV-2016-09-3928

Attachments: Williams - KNR's Supplemental Discovery Requests to Plaintiff, Matthew Johnson
(10-5-2018).docx; Williams - KNR's Supplemental Discovery Requests to Plaintiff,
Matthew Johnson (10-5-2018).pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Good afternoon Mr. Pattakos,

Attached please find KNR’s Supplemental Discovery Requests to Plaintiff, Matthew Johnson in both Word and .pdf
formats, for your convenience,

As always, should you have any questions and/or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Thank you and kindest regards.

Nellie Santos

Legal Assistant to:

John R. Christie, Esq.

Thomas J. Stefanik, Esq.

Timothy Chai, Esq.
Nellie.Santos@lewisbrisbois.com
13756 k. 9th Street

One Clevelond Centet, Sulte 2250
Cleveland, OH 44114 —

T:216.686.8814 F: 216.344.9421

. .
b |
ESet g

This e-mail may contain or attach privileged, confidential or protected information intended only for the use of the intended
recipient. If you are not the intended recipient, any review or use of it is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error,
you are required to notify the sender, then delete this email and any attachment from your computer and any of your electronic
devices where the message is stored.
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

SUMMIT COUNTY, OHIO
MEMBER WILLIAMS, et al. Case No. CV-2016-09-3928
Plaintiffs,
Defendant Kisling, Nestico & Redick,
VS, LLC’s Supplemental Interrogatories,

Production of Documents to Plaintiff
Matthew Johnson

Kisling, Nestico & Redick, LLC, et al.

)
)
)
)
)
}  Request for Admissions, and Request for
)
)
Defendants. )
)

Pursuant to Rules 33, 34, and 36 of the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure, Defendant Kisling,
Nestico & Redick, LLC (“KNR™), submits its Supplemental Interrogatories, Request for
Admissions, and Request for Production of Documents to Plaintiff Matthew Johnson, fo be
answered within twenty-eight (28) days of service subject to all pertinent objections to admissibility
which may be interposed at trial. The Definitions and Instructions in the initial discovery requests

to Plaintiff Matthew Johnson apply to these supplemental requests as well.

INTERROGATORIES

INTEROGATORY NO. 1: On luly 6, 2018, Plaintiff Matthew Johnson testified as to certain
alleged cash payments Mr. Johnson made to Attorney Paul Steele, which cash payments were
purportedly to be used to repay Mr. Johnson’s loan with Liberty Capital Funding. For each such
instance in which Mr. Johnson provided cash, check, or any other form of money or payment to
Paul Steele, any member of KNR, or any other individual or entity, for the repayment of Mr.
Johnson’s loan with Liberty Capital Funding, pleasc provide the following: a) date of payment; b)
amount of payment; c) form of payment (cash, check or otherwise); d) to whom such payment was
made; ¢) the location where Mr. Johnson allegedly provided such payment; and f) any known
witnesses to such payment.

ANSWER:

INTERROGATORY NO. 2: Please identify the amount of interest paid by Mr, Johnson as a
result of his loan with Liberty Capital Funding,

ANSWER:
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INTERROGATORY NO. 3: Please identify and provide contact information for all individuals
(other than your son) who lived with you at any time from the time you were first represented by
KNR to the present.

ANSWER:

INTERROGATORY NO. 4: If any of your Answers to any Request for Admission is anything
other than an unqualified admission, please identify the basis for your denial or qualified admission.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 1: Admit that you have no documentation regarding any
payments, whether cash or otherwise, provided by Matthew Johnson to Paul Steele.

ANSWER: .

REGQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 2: Admit that you have no documentation regarding any
payments, whether cash or otherwise, provided by Matthew Johnson to any attorney, employee,
or representative of KNR.

ANSWER: .

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 3: Admit that you are unable to identify a single
“kickback” or payment made by Liberty Capital Funding to Defendant Rob Nestico.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR _ADMISSION NO. 4: Admit that you are unable to identify a single
“kickback” or payment made by Liberty Capital Funding to Defendant Robert Redick. _

ANSWER: -

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 5: Admit that you are unable to identify a single
“kickback” or payment made by Liberty Capital Funding to any owner, partner, aftorney,
employee, or other representative of KINR.

ANSWER:
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REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 6: Admit you reviewed documents to prepare for your
July 6, 2018, deposition testimony,

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 7: Admit you failed to produce a single document at your
July 6, 2018, deposition in response to the Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum served on you for
that deposition.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 8: Admit that, as of July 6, 2018, you had provided no
documents whatsoever to your attorneys in this case to suppott your allegations against any of
the Defendants.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 9: Admit your prior use of marijuana was illegal.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NQ, 10: Admit the recreational use of marijuana was illegal at
the times you used marijuana.,

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 11: Admit you discussed your representation by KNR,
your loan with Liberty Capital Funding, and/or your claims in this case with one or more of the
individuals identified in your Answer to Interrogatory No. 3 above.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 12: Admit you have no documentation of any costs or
interests paid by your or on your behalf to Liberty Capital Funding.

ANSWER:
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 1: Please produce copies of any and all documents you
reviewed and/or notes you prepared in preparation for your July 6, 2018, deposition.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 2: Please produce the “typed paper” you referred to at
pages 77-78 of your July 6, 2018, deposition testimony, relating to any of the Defendants’
alleged ownership interest in Liberty Capital.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 3: Please produce any and all documents or other items
supporting your allegation that one or more the Defendants have an ownership interest in Liberty
Capital.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NQ. 4: Please produce any and all documents or other items
supporting your allegation that one or more the Defendants have received “kickbacks” from
Liberty Capital.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 5: Please produce telephone records of any telephone
calls between you and any owner, employee, or other representative of Liberty Capital Funding.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 6: Please produce copies of all leases or other
documents referencing any individuals who lived with you at any time from the beginning of
KNR’s representation of you until the present.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 7: Please produce a copy of all emails or other
communications between you and any employees, agents, attorneys, or other representatives of
KNR.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NQ. 8: Please produce copies of all emails or other
correspondence between you and any owner, employee, agent, or other representative of Liberty
Capital Funding.

ANSWER:
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 9: Please produce telephone records of any telephone
calls between you and any owner, employee, or other representative of Liberty Capital Funding.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 10: Please produce copies of any and all documents or
other tangible items used to answer the Interrogatories or Request for Admissions above.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 11: Please produce copies of all documents responsive
to the Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum served on you prior to your July 6, 2018, deposition.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NQ. 12: Mr. Johnson testified he withdrew money from the
bank to make payments to Paul Steele for repayment of Mr, Johnson’s loan with Liberty Capital
Funding. Please produce copies of all bank statements, ATM withdrawal receipts, or any other
documents or items relating to withdraws you made from any bank or other financial institution
for the repayment of your loan with Liberty Capital Funding.

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 13: Please produce the “bunch of notes™ that you
“wrote down based on what I read” and/or that you reviewed prior to your July 6, 2018,
deposition. {(You claim to have left these notes at your home and did not bring the notes to the
deposition. See pages 71, 72, 133-135, 159, and multiple other pages of your deposition for
reference).

ANSWER:

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 14: Please produce copies of all documents in your
possession relating to your conviction for drug trafficking and the corruption of another.

ANSWER:
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Respectfully submitted,

/st Thomas P. Mannion
Thomas P. Mannion #0062551
1375 E 9 St., Ste. 2250
Cleveland, OH 44114

Phone: (216) 344-9467

Fax: (216) 344-9241

Tom.Mannion(@lewisbrisbois.com
Counsel for Defendant KNR

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1 hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing was served via ordinary mail and electronic
mail to Plaintiffs’ counsel and Defendants’ counsel on this 5™ day of October, 2018.
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Thomas P. Mannion

Tom.Mannion@lewisbrishois.com
Direct; 216.344.04687
( BRI SB OI S Cell: 216.870.3780

LEWIG BRISBOIS BISGAARD 8 SMITH LLP

October 5, 2018

Peter Pattakos

The Pattakos Law Firm LLC
101 Ghent Road

Fairlawn, OH 44333
peter@ pattakoslaw.com

Joshua R. Cohen

Cchen Rosenthal & Kramer LLP
3208 Clinton Avenue

One Clinton Place

Cleveland, Ohio 44113
jcohen@crklaw.com

Re: Attempt to Resolve Discovery Disputes
Williams, et al. v. KNR, et al,
Cv-2016-09-3928

Dear Mr. Pattakos and Mr. Cohen:

Please provide deposition dates for the continuation depositions of Plaintiff Matthew Johnson and Plaintiff
Thera Reid as soon as possible. Please also supplement Plaintiffs’ document production as discussed
herein.

As you know, the Defendants formally requested the production of certain documents from the Plaintiffs,
both in written discovery and via duces tecums at their depositions. The remainder of this letter addresses
certain document requests made to Plaintiff Matthew Johnson, as discussed at his deposition, along with
his refusal to answer a plethora of questions. Mr. Johnson admitted he possesses multiple documents
responsive to the Defendants’ discovery requests. However, he failed to bring a single responsive
document with him to the deposition, not even the documents he reviewed to prepare for the deposition.
More troubling than the lack of production is the stated reason for non-compliance: you advised him either
NOT to bring the documents or you failed to advise him of his obligation to bring the documents:

Q. Why didn’t you bring anything responsive to this [Notice of Duces Tecum] request?

Mr. Pattakos: Because | didn’t advise him to, Tom. Let’s move on.

ARIZONA « CALIFORNIA » COLORADO - GONNECTICUT - FLORIDA + GEORGIA » ILLINOIS « INDIANA « KANSAS o KENTUCKY
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NORTH CAROLINA + OHIC » OREGON -+ PENNSYLVANIA + RHODE ISLAND + TEXAS « WASHINGTON » WEST VIRGINIA
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Peter Pattakos
QOctober 5, 2018
Page 2

Regardless of the reason or motivation for Plaintiff Matthew Johnson’s failure to comply with these
discovery requests, the Defendants are entitled to these documents. Please supplement accordingly or at
least advise as to which documents you will continue to refuse to provide, so we can address those specific
requests with the Court.

in addition to the failure to produce any documents whatsoever responsive to the discovery requests, Mr.
Johnson also refused to answer a number of questions, on advice of counsel. We would ask you to please
reconsider your position in this regard prior to the continuation depositions.

This letter is an attempt to resolve the discovery disputes discussed herein without court intervention. We
look forward to your response. While we may not be able to resolve all of the below disputes, perhaps we

can at least narrow the issues.

Documents Responsive to the Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum Served on Plaintiff Matthew Johnson

The Notice of Depoesition Duces Tecunt to Mr. Jahnson was properly and timely served, {See Exhibit 1 to
Mr. dohnsan’s deposition. Mr. lohnson’s testimony and obligation to produce those documents is
discussed in the table below, with citations to the appropriate page/line number for your review:

Page(s)/Lin | Documents Requested Testimony / Discussion

e(s)
124/20-25; | Any documents responsive to the Notice of | Q.  And did this document, Exhibit 1
125/1-8 Deposition Duces Tecum: [Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum], ask

you to bring anything with you today?
Look at page 3.

A. Yeah.

Q. Did you bring any documents today in
response to this notice?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you bring any documents at all
with you today?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you provide your attorney with any
documents that are responsive to these
requests?

A. No, sir.

1. All documents relating to income earned
by Plaintiff from January 1, 2013, to the
present, including, but not I[imited to,
Plaintiff’s federal and state income tax forms,
W-2 forms, 1099 forms, payroll forms, and
payroli stubs.

2. All documents relating to communications
between Plaintiff and KNR at any time.,

3. All documents relating to communications
between Plaintiff and Nestico at any time.

4. All documents relating to communications
between Plaintiff and Redick at any time,

5. Any and all documents you have reviewed

As Mr. Johnson admitted at deposition, he
did not produce a single document
responsive to the Notice of Deposition
Duces Tecum. You have an obligation to
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in preparation for your deposition.

produce these documents {the first four of
which were also requested via Request for
Production of Documents). Please advise
as to your current position on this issue.

16/22-25;
128/1-4

Duces Tecum Request No. 1:

All documents relating to income earned by
Plaintiff from January 1, 2013, to the present,
including, but not limited to, Plaintiff's
federal and state income tax forms, W-2
forms, 1099 forms, payroll forms, and payroll
stubs,

Mr. Johnson did not produce income tax
returns or any other documents
responsive to this duces tecum request, on
advice of counsel. In addition to being
relevant on other grounds {as you have
been advised multiple times during this
case by Jim Popson and others), the tax
returns are also relevant to Mr. Johnson's
conflicting testimony as to the reason he
obtained a loan from Liberty Capital and
to his credibility, as Mr. Johnson testified
he reported his tip income from his
employment as a bouncer to the IRS as
income. We would like copies of the
income tax returns to verify this
testimony.

Based on your prior representations, it
appears this issue is one for the Court to
decide. We just wanted to check with you
to see if you have reconsidered your
position on this issue based on Mr.
Johnson’s testimony. Please advise.

127/15;
128/5-25;
129/1-7;
184/21-23

Duces Tecum request 2:
All documents relating to communications
between Plaintiff and KNR at any time,

Q. Have you provided your email
communications with KNR to vyour
attorney?

A. | don't have any communications via
email.

Q. With KNR?

A. Right?

Q. Nane?

A. 1don't know if | emailed them.

Q. None?

Q. What documents did you bring today
relating to communications between
plaintiff and KNR at any time?
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Page 4
A, ldidn't,
Q. Is there areason?
A. No.
Q. Didn’t you think it was important to
comply with the request?
A. It was a request,
Q. I'm sorry?
A. It was a request,
Q. Why didn't you bring anything
responsive to this request?
M. Pattakos: Because | didn’t advise him
to, Tom. Let’s move on.
A. Yeah, | do what my lawyer tells me to,
man.
Q. Do you know agree that you emailed
with KNR?
A. Itlooks like it.
Mr. Johnson obviously has email
communications with KNR and wvarious
attorneys/employees at KNR. We have no
idea why you would tell him not to
produce these documents, as you have
failed to provide a single legal basis for
objecting to this request. Do you intend
to produce these documents? If not, on
what basis?
71/14-25; Duces Tecum request 5: Q. What did you review [to prepare for
72/1-8; Any and all documents you have reviewed in | the deposition]? ,
133/223-25; | preparation for your deposition. A. | reviewed a bunch of notes that |
134/1-25; wrote down based on what | read, but —
135/1-25;
159/3-24; Q. Where are those notes? ...
and multiple A. They're at my home.
other pages.
Q. | would ask that you please provide
those notes to your attorney because you
reviewed them to prepare for today. So
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www lewisbrisbois.com

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts




CV-2016-09-3928 GALLAGHER, PAUL 11/07/2018 16:58:14 PM DPEL Page 33 of 142

Peter Pattakos
October 5,2018
Page 5

would you please provide them to Mr.
Pattakos?
Mr. Pattakos: Sure.

Q. Did you review it on your own at home
or did you only review it with your
counsel?

A. 1 reviewed it with my counsel and then
| also reviewed it an my own.

Q. Did you review it to prepare for today?
A. Yeah.

Q. Is that what you also took notes on?

A. Yeah.

Mr. Johnson was unable to answer
numerous guestions during the depaosition
as to his claims against the Defendants or
his evidence to support those claims. He
testified he reviewed documents
containing the requested information on
Tuesday, July 3, three days before the
deposition. However, he claimed to have
forgotten the information since his review
of them several days prior, which he
facetiously blamed on the Fourth of July
fireworks. However, the documents were
at his house when he left on the day of the
deposition and zero reason exists for
failure to produce these documents. Are
you taking the position these are not
discoverable? Please either produce the
documents forthwith or provide a legal
basis for the continued refusal to produce
the documents so we can further evaluate
the issue,

77-78 Documents relating to Defendants’ alleged | Mr. Johnson testified this evidence exists
ownership interest in Liberty Capital. on a “typed paper.” Mr. Johnson further
testified he would identify these
documents and provide them to Mr.
Pattakos. To this date, we have not
received these documents.

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP

www. iewisbrisbois.com

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts




CV-2016-09-3928

Peter Pattakos
October 5, 2018
Page 6

GALLAGHER, PAUL

11/07/2018 16:58:14 PM

DPEL Page 34 of 142

196/19-23

Telephone records.

Mr. Johnson testified he does not know
whether he called Liberty Capital Funding.
Thus, we would ask for copies of Mr.
Johnson's telephone records for the time
period in question, which was discussed in
the deposition. You can certainly redact
any phone numbers unrelated to KNR’s
representation of Mr. Johnson or his
dealings with Liberty Capital.

other areas

240-252 and | Documents relating to alleged “kickbacks”.

Mr. Johnson initially refused to say
whether he could identify even a single
“kickback” as alleged in the pleadings. At
page 251 when asked if he could identify
any such documents, he finally admitted:
“Not right now.” Please consider this our
request for Plaintiffs to supplement their
document production and provide any
such documents or other evidentiary
items identifying any alleged “kickbacks”.

Mr. Johnson’s Refusal to Answer Questions “On Advice of Counsel”

Mr. Johnson refused to answer a number of questions on “advice of counsel”, and we would ask you to
please reconsider your position before Mr, Johnson’s continuation deposition. Some of the questions Mr.
Johnson refused to answer are discussed below:

Page(s)/Line(s)

Testimony

Discussion

53/6-25;
54/1-12

Mr. Johnson admitted he smoked marijuana in | We understand your fear of allowing

the past but stopped

because a class | Mr. Johnson to testify regarding his use

representative should not use illegal drugs. | of illegal drugs, criminal drug trafficking
When asked when he stopped using the illegal | charges, and criminally corrupting

drug, Mr. Johnson testified as follows:

others. Mr. Johnson’s testimony on

Q. Is that when you stopped [smoking
marijuanal, when you became the class
representative?

A. Neo.

Since becoming a class representative was not
the time in which he stopped BUT he stopped
because he knew a class representative should
not use illegal drugs, the implication from Mr.
Johnson's testimony is that he was using

these issues obviously impacts both his
credibility and his suitability as a class
representative, However, this is
essentially an “it hurts my case”
objection, which is not proper.

With respect to Mr. Johnson’s use of
illegal drugs, the issue is not whether
10% of the United States permitted use
of his drug of choice, as his use of
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illegal drugs at some point during this | marijuana was in Ohio, where it was
litigation. In an attempt to clarify, we asked | not legal for him to do so.
when he stopped using illegal drugs, and he | Furthermore, from his testimony, it
refused to answer the question on advice of | appears he was still using marijuana
counsel, after becoming a class representative,
which impacts his ability so serve as a
Q. When did you stop [smaoking marijuana]? class representative. Moreover, we
Mr. Pattakos: Objection. Don’t answer. ... certainly have a right to know about
Q. Do you refuse to answer the guestion? Mr. Johnson’s marijuana usage during
Mr. Pattakos: Yes, he does. his representation by the Defendants,
A. Yes. as that could impact his memory,
Mr. Mannion (in response to Mr, Pattakos): | perception, and other items of
Well, he needs to tell me that. conversations and events during the
A. My attorney told me not to answer it. pertinent time periods.
55/22-25; Mr. Johnson admitted to being convicted of | You admit “it's admissible, the fact of
56/1-25; 57/1- | drug trafficking but refused to answer any | the conviction.” You then instructed
25; 58/1-9 factual questions re: the criminal activity other | Mr. Johnson not to  answer any
than the date he was arrested (August 12, | guestions re: the circumstances
2015). Mr. Johnson testified: because the incident was “public

Q. So tell me about the trafficking charge.
What happened?

A. That's irrelevant to this.

Mr. Pattakos: Yeah. Tom, we’re not going to
get into this.

A. Pm not going to answer that.

Mr. Pattakos: It's public record. You can have
access to the public record. If you want to ask
him guestions about this background, then
you can get an order form the Court.

Q. And tell me the circumstances under
which you were arrested.

Mr. Pattakos: No. No. That's all public
record. I'm going to instruct him not to
answer. We're not getting into that.

Mr. Mannion: Public record is not a valid
reason to instruct a witness not to answer -
Mr. Pattakos: Well, but given it's ... complete

record” and because your claim that
the circumstances are not admissible at
trial.  However, as you know, the
threshold to determine whether an
issue is discoverable is lower than the
threshold for admissibility at trial. The
circumstances surrounding Mr.
Johnson’s drug trafficking conduct are
certainly reasonably calculated to lead
to the discovery of admissible
information as it relates to the claims,
defenses, his credibility and his
suitability as a class representative.
Please reconsider your position in this
regard.
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irrelevance to this case, you can get — it's
admissible, the fact of the conviction. That is
it. That is simply all that is admissible in this
case, Tom, the fact that he was convicted for
drug trafficking. The circumstances are
irrelevant. .... 'm objecting and I'm instructing
my witness not to answer the question. If you
want to try to explain to me that you have a
legitimate basis for asking these abusive
guestions, I'm all ears, otherwise we can move
on, Okay?

Mr. Mannion: This has — discoverability and
relevancy at trial are two different things, as
you know. And we are asking him these
gquestions because not only are they
discoverable as to his own credibility, but
perhaps as to his adequacy as a class
representative. And there’s multiple other
reasons. | don’t need to describe them all
here. If you want to object, you object, If you
want to instruct him not to answer, you
instruct him not to answer.

Q. So you're not going to tell me the
circumstances under which you were arrested,
sir?

Mr. Pattakos: He is not. I'm going to instruct
him not to answer.

Q. You [referring to Mr. lohnson] need to tel}
me that.

A. Nog, sir.

59/5-25;
60/1-8

Q. And you knew it was not legal in Ohio at
the time, correct, sir?

Mr. Pattakos: Don’t answer that. Move on.

Q. Isn’t that true, sir?

Mr. Pattakos: Tom, move on. Den't answer
that question, Matt. ...

Q. And, sir, was Chio one of the five states
your lawyer referred to as having marijuana
legalized -

Mr. Pattakos: Don’t answer —

Despite your gratuitous comment
marijuana is “legal in, like, five states”,
you know it was not legal in Ohio.
However, when we asked Mr. Johnson
whether he knew marijuana was NOT
legal in Ohio, you instructed him not to
answer. Mr. Johnson’s knowledge as
to whether he knew he was violating
the law was a proper question, and we
ask you to reconsider again.
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Q. —at the time you -
Mr. Pattakos: --the guestion.
Q. —were trafficking?
Mr. Pattakos: Don’t answer the question,
Matthew.
Q. Do you refuse to answer?
A. Yes, sir.
60/9-25; Q. And was there a minor involved in this | Again, while you ¢an argue as to the
61/23-25; incident? admissibility at trial, these issues are
62/1-23 Mr. Pattakos: Objection. Don't answer the | certainly reasonably calculated to lead

question. ...

Q. Who was it that you were contributing —
that you were trying to influence with these
drugs, if anybody?

Mr. Pattakos: Objection.
question.

Don’t answer the

Q. Do you know, sir?
Mr. Pattakos: Again objection. Don't answer
the question.

Q. Okay. Do you know why you were charged
with corruption of another?

Mr. Pattakos: Objection. Don't answer. I'm
instructing the witness not to answer the
guestion.

Q. Do you refuse to answer that?

Mr. Pattakos: Matt, just say yes and let’s
move on.

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Do you agree you were charged
with corruption of another —

Mr. Pattakos: Don’t answer the question.
This is harassment.

Q. Do you agree with that, sir, that you were
charged with corrupting another—

Mr. Pattakos: Matt, just keep saying —

Q. —with drugs?
Mr. Pattakos:
question.”

-l refuse to answer that

to the discovery of admissible
information. Please reconsider your
position in this regard.
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A. 1refuse to answer that question.

113/6-25; Mr. Johnson refused to identify the individuals
114/1-25; with whom he lived, including the individuals
115/1-25; with whom he lived at times referenced in the
116/1-25 Complaint and various Amended Complaints.

Mr. Pattakos instructed the witness not to
answer the guestion on lack of relevance and
because his client “doesn’t want to bring other

people’s names into this.”

Documents Relating to Liberty Capital

Defendants served multiple discovery requests on Mr. Johnson relating to proof of his damages, evidence
of the alleged “self-dealing” and “kickbacks” between Defendants and Liberty Capital, and other issues
relating to the Putative “Class C” cltaims. For example, KNR’s Requests for Production Nos, 18 and 19:

18.  All Documents relating to Tiberty Capital,

19.  All Documents relafing to Defendants” alleged undisclosed self~dealing and kickbacks

with Libetty Capital,

Please review the table below with the above requests in mind and advise as to your current position on
production of these documents.

Page(s)/Linels)

Documents Requested

Testimaony / Discussion

9/22-25;
10/1-4

Documents  supporting  Mr.
Johnson’s claim relating 1o the
loan with Liberty Capitai, as
requested in multiple Requests
for Production of Documents.

Mr. Johnson testified he repaid his loan by giving cash
payments to Paul Steele. Further, Mr. Johnson
testified he would have withdrawn money from his
bank account to make those cash payments. Please
produce bank documents reflecting such withdrawals,

10/17-24

Documents supporting Mr,
lohnson’s claim relating to the
loan with Liberty Capital, as
requested in multiple Requests
for Production of Documents,

Mr. Johnson confirmed on deposition he is making a
claim for costs and interest paid to Liberty as a result
of the Defendants’ alleged conduct. Mr. Johnson
admitted he does not know the amount of the
damages he purportedly sustained in this regard.
Moreover, when asked: “How are we supposed to
know how much those costs and fees were?”, Mr.
Iohnson testified: “l dont know.”  Please produce
any documents responsive to this request or formally

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
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advise no such documents exist.

12/12-19 Documents supporting Mr, | According to his testimony, Mr. Johnson has no
Johnson’s claim relating to the | documentation regarding any payments he made on
foan with Liberty Capital, as | hisloan to Liberty Capital. Significantly, he testified:
requested in multiple Requests | Q. Do you know whether your lawyer has any such
for Production of Documents. documents in his possession?

A. 1 am actually 100 percent not sure.

Please produce any documents you have in your
possession on this issue.

While this document does not address all the deficiencies in Plaintiff Matthew Johnson’s discovery
responses, the issues raised at deposition are thoroughly addressed herein. We would ask that you please
review the matters discussed above with an eye towards resolving our discovery dispute. We look forward
to your response to the above, so that we can hopefully resolve most or all of these issues without court
intervention. Best regards.

Sincerely,

Ttomas 2. Wanuion

Thomas P. Mannion

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
www.lewisbrisbois.com
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From: Mannion, Tom

Sent: Friday, October 05, 2018 2:48 PM

To: Peter Pattakos; Joshua Cohen

Subject: RE: Williams, et al. v. KNR, et al, - Case Ne, 2016 09 3928
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

When can | expect a response to Mr. Johnson's deposition production failures? 1need to get a Motion to Compel filed if
you are not going to provide the documents and allow the testimony. It's been 3 manths and you continue to refuse to
produce the documents. This isn't a situation of searching computers or tracking documents down. Mr. Johnson left the
documents sitting at his house when he came to the deposition. Just copy and send them over. You've refused to even
give an explanation for your instructions to him to ignore the Civil Rules,

Thomas P. Mannion

Attorney | Cleveland Managing Partner

Tom.Mannion@lewisbrisbois.com
SRISBOlS T: 216.344.9467 :216.344.9421 M: 216.870.3780

1375 E. 9th Street, Suite 2250, Cleveland, OH 44114 | LewisBrisbois.com

Representing clients from coast 1o coast, View our locations nationwide.

This e-mail may contain or attach privileged, confidential or protected information intendad ony for the use of the intended reciptent. i vou are ot the
intended reciplent, any review or use of ik striclly prohiblied, if vou heve received this - mail in error, you are required 1o notify the sender, then
delete this emall and any attachment from your computer and any of your glectronic devices where the message is stored.

From: Peter Pattakos [mailto:peter@pattakoslaw.com]

Sent: Friday, October 05, 2018 2:41 PM

To: LeAnn Backer <LCBacker@cpcourt.summitoh.net>

Cc: Barb Day <bday@sutter-law.com>; James M. Popson <jpopson@sutter-law.com>; Nathan F. Studeny
<nstudeny@sutter-law.com>; jcasey@dlcfirm.com; Shaun Kedir <shaunkedir@kedirlaw.com>;
phimelrigh@cpcourt.summitoh.net; Mannion, Tom <Tom.Mannion@lewisbrisbais.com>; Joshua Cohen
<jcohen@crklaw.com>; dmbest@dmbestlaw.com; Eric Kennedy <EKennedy@weismanlaw.com>; Daniel Goetz Esq.
(dgoetz@weismanlaw.com) <dgoetz@weismanlaw.com>

Subject: Re: Williams, et al. v. KNR, et al. - Case No. 2016 09 3928

Plaintiffs' opposition to KNR's motion to strike, just filed, is attached. Thank you.

Peter Pattakos

The Pattakos Law Firm LLC

101 Ghent Read

Fairlawn, OH 44333

330.836.8533 office; 330.285.2998 mobile
peter@patiakoslaw.com

www, pattakosiaw.com

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts
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This email might contain confidential or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete it and alert us,

On Fri, Oct 5, 2018 at 2:10 PM LeAnn Backer <LCBacker@cpcourt.summitoh.net> wrote:

Thank you.

Lefinn Backer

. From: Barb Day [mailto:bday@sutter-law.com]

- Sent: Friday, October 5, 2018 2:00 PM

© To: LeAnn Backer <LCBacker@cpcourt.summitoh.net>

Cc: James M. Popson <jpopson(@sutter-law.com>; Nathan F. Studeny <nstudenv@sutter-law.com>;
jeasey@dlcfirm.com; peter@pattakoslaw.com; shaunkedir@kedirlaw.com; Patricia Himelrigh

- <phimelrigh@cpcourt.summitoh.net>; Mannion, Tom <Tom.Mannion@lewisbrisbois.com>;

‘ Subject: Williams, et al. v. KNR, et al, - Case No. 2016 09 3928

Ms. Backer,

Attached please find Defendants’ Motion to Strike Supplement to Plaintiffs’ Motion for Leave to File
Fourth Amended Complaint and a Proposed Order on Deadline for Submission of Motion to Certify
Alleged Classes which have been filed with the Court today. Thank you,

Barb Day

Barb Day
¢ Assistant to James Popson, Derek Hartman and Matthew Brady

2
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1
£
:
H
H

3600 Erieview Tower
1301 E. 9th Street
Cleveland, OH 44114

Direct: 216.928.4524
Fax: 216.928.4400

bday@sutter-law.com
www.sutter-law.com

This is a privileged and confidential communication. if you are not the intended recipient, you must: (1} notify the sender of the error; (2) destroy this
communication entirely, including deletion of all assodiated attachment files from all individual and network storage devices; and (3) refrain from copying
or disseminating this communication by any means.

@% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts
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Thomas P. Mannion

L E WI S Tom.Mannion@lewisbrisbois.com

Phone: 216.344,9422

( BR]S BO]S Cell: 216.870.3780

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP

November 3, 2018

Peter Patiakos

The Pattakos Law Firm LLC
10t Ghent Road

Fairlawn, OH 44333

Inve: Williams, et al. vs. KNR, et al.
Matt Johnson’s discovery responses

Dear Mr, Pattakos:

Thank you for forwarding Mr. Johnson's responses to supplemental discovery. Unfortunately, the
regponses wore wholly nonresponsive.  This correspondence is an attempt to resolve this without

court intervention. The issues below are relatively simple, so we ask you to please provide proper
responses and to respond to the below requests.

i. Taterrogatory No. 4
INTERROGATORY NO. 4 If any of your Answers tu any Request for Admission is
anything other thart #n unqualified admission, please identify the basis for yonr denial or
cualified admisgion,

ANSWER: Scc RFA responises below,

You did NOT provide the basis of your denials to the Request for Admissions.

ARIZONA. » CALIFORNIA » COLORADQ - CONNECTICUT +« FLORIDA - GEORGIA » ILLINOIS + INDIANA - KANSAS « KENTUCKY
LOUISIANA  + MARYLAND + MASSACHUSETTS -+ MISSOURI - NEVADA - NEW JERSEY -+ NEW MEXICO -+ NEW YORK
NORTH CARCOLINA « OHIO « OREGON +« PENNSYLVANIA « RHODFE ISLAND « TEXAS - WASHINGTON » WEST VIRGINIA

4844-7531-6834.1

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts

L.‘



CV-2016-09-3928 GALLAGHER, PAUL 11/07/2018 16:58:14 PM DPEL Page 44 of 142

Peter Pattakos
November 3, 2018
Page 2

2. Request for Admissions No. 3, 4, and 5

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO, 3; Admit that you are unable to idendfy a single
“Kickback” or payment made by Liberty Capital Funding ro Defendant Rob Nestico.
ANSWER: Objection, This request calls for a legal conclusion and attormey-work product,

Subject 1o and without waivieg this olyection: Deny, Please refer to the docket in this lawsuit.

Request for Admission 4 is the same request but re: Mr. Redick; and Request for Admission 5 is the
same request but re: KINR as a firm. "Refer to the docket” does not identify a single "kickback” or
payment from Liberty Capital to Rob Nestico. The docket doesn't identify one. If you believe it
does, then please identify the precise document, page number, and paragraph number of such
document. Moreover, we asked this of Mr. Johnson, and he went around and around saying he
"didn't need to" identify any single "kickback." Finally, at page 251, after 3 pages of asking
questions, Mr. Johnson admitted he cannot identify a single kickback payment. This Request for
Admission is to clarify the issue without having to impeach with 3 pages of deposition testimony.

Whether Mr. Johnson or any Plaintiff “needs to” identify a specific kickback payment is not the
issue being argued. “Whether the law requires you to identify a specific kickback vs. whether you
actually can identify a kickback are two different issues. Obviously, if you had evidence of a
specific kickback, you would be waving it high and often in front of the press, judges, and potential
jury. So, whatever evidence it is you believe you have, we are entitled to know. If you don’t have
such evidence, just say: None can be identified at this fime but discovery is ongoing. But a non-
answer is not appropriate. Ihave pasted your client’s testimony from pages 249-251 below to show
the ridiculousness of his position. The bottem line: You are claiming Liberty Capital gave
"kickbacks" to Rob Nestico. At this stage of discovery are you able to identify a kickback?

In addition, the Answer to Request for Admission No. 4 indicates ““Every time Liberty Capital
wrote down amounts owed by a KNR client to resolve a case, a financial benefit accrued to the
KNR Defendants.” What do you mean by this? Does “wrote down” mean discounted? Or does it
mean “discounted”? ¥f the client pays back less to Liberty Capital, such lower payment inures to
the client’s benefit. Please explain what you mean by your answer.

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
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And capr you identify ong kigkback paymenh?
fne .
I don*t need to,
Thit's riat what I asked you. ¥ sald: UTan you
Adentify one kickPack peyment?®
And my answer is T don't need Lo,
Phat's not my guestion,
Can you --
¥R, PATTAROS! Ha's answered
yoar guestion, Tom.
ThatVe my snewer. I1'm answering your
qguastion -~
MR. PATTAKOS: Movie on.
Wa, wou're ngt,
e O
Mo, you're net.
Can you Fdentify -
that ‘s my asewer te the gueation.
MR. PATTAROS: HMatt, why
dontt -~
‘Can you identify one kickback payment £or ang
“Foan transaciian?
T dontt nesd b,
fhat's not &y guoesilon.
That’s By anaswar.
Fie.
B, PRITRKQS: LeLfs take g
break,
He.
We dun't need Lo bale a bresk,
Can you idectify --
Letts gek this ever with.
~w @ singls kKickback paymest from Libesty
capital to any of the KR defendants for any
Aoan transzotion, & single one?
1 don't nend to.
That's sob wy questlion, Can you?
Are we going to do this for another --
Well, you have bo answar the quesiion, siz,
. BATTARGS; He did answar
the guestion, Tom.
That’s wy answer.
#R. PATTAEOS: That's hig
answir., If you den't Eike it --
Itts & yes or no. Can yoa ldankify pne?
MR, PATTAHOS: I you don’x
1ike bls angwex, Tom -~ you don'lk get Lo pick

his answet.
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g  You don't —-

MR. PAHTAROS: Ask ancther --
O -— know the law.
MR, PATTAKOS: ~- guestion.

4 You already told me that, sir. So whether you

have to or net is a different issug -—-

MR. PETLYAROS: Ask sEnothsr ==
9] —- than whather you can.

MR. PATTAKOS: Ask a new --
A I'm sorry.

MR, PATTAROS: -~ guestion,

Tom.  You got'your Anawer.

Q Pleage identify for wme all kickback payments

that you Knew about For dny lean tratsaction
that Liberty_Capital completed with KNR,
What was the gusstion?
o Sure.
Pledse identify for me any klokback
payment. that you arve aware of for any lean

tramgaction that Liberty Capital completed with

KNR glients.

You waht me to show you?

I asked you to identify any. Can you?
Not right now,

When do you plan on dolng that?

N I

I don't know, sir.

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
www. lewisbrisbols.com
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3. Request for Admissions No. 8

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NG, 8: Admir that, as of July 6, 2018, you had provided no
documents whatsoever 1o your attorseys in this ense to support your allegations agaiost any of
‘the Defendants,

ANSWER: Deny. See docomsnes referenced in the pleadings of this case, including the loan

agreement with Liberty Capltal.

Peter, your client admitted at deposition he did not provide you a single piece of paper or any other
docunient in this case:

¢  Have you provided your attorney any documents
in tHis rase?

A MNo, sir.

We were attempting to confirm this in a simple Request for Admission. Do you maintain the
Angwer to Request for Admission No. 8 in light of your client’s sworn testimony?

4. Requests for Production No. 1 and 13

BEGUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. It Please produce copies of any and sl documents
your verviewed andfor potes yon prepared o preparation foe yonr July 8, 2048, deposision.
ANSWER: The ardy docaments M, Johnson tevived in prepamtion for bis deposition were
his sttomnery’ notes thar s aomey wrote for him, Mr. Johnson's notes reflcoting ndeice from
s atvormey, excerpe from his eagrgement keiter where he as advised of dhe duties of & class
representative, and excerpts from the Thind Armended Comphint and Plindfls' Rule 55(F)
‘ootion, All sich ootes and documensy are either privilesed or pleadings that 2re nlready dn
Drefendants" possession.
REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 13 Plésse produde e “bunch of fords™ that o
"oris Gown Dased ors whar I rend™ pod/or har you_ reviewed por to your fuly B, 2008,
deposition. (Ve clafei 10 bave ofé these notes: at youk home and did nés bring the notes to the
feposivion. See pages 71, 72, 133185 159, and ovliipls oher pages of yous deposition for

rveferencich,

ANSWER: The only docaments in M¥. Johnsos possession thet e responsive to this requost
are those describied in the fesponses to mguests Ne. 1 aid 2 ghove, swhich are cither privilynd,

‘o slready In Diefendanss? possession.

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
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The importance of these documents cannot be overstated. Mr. Johnson claimed he knew the
answers to the questions he was asked on deposition, but he was unable to answer them because the
fireworks blew his mind away, because of being overwhelmed by the deposition process, and then
because he forgot the answers. BUT — he said he would be able to answer the questions if he had
the documents AND HIS OWN NOTES in front of him. Among the many other times Mr. Johnson
testified the answers were in his notes is the following answer:

If I had known I was able to bring my notes, T

would be fine,

Moreover, your list of documents is not exhaustive. Mr. Johnson was unable to identify all of the
dgcuments he reviewed, but he indicated they included discovery documents as well along with HIS
PWN NOTES that he wrote reviewing those documents. We are entitled to those. If you beligve
his notes ate privileged, then we ask them to be submitted to the Court for an in camera review.

5. . Reqguest for Production Nos. 3 and 4

frerns supporiog your alegadon that one or more the Defendants have an ownaeshiy interest in
Libersy Capital.
ADSWER: All such doowents i Me Jobosan’s posmmssion have been producsd in this

Helgagion other suelvdlacuments arein Defendants’ Prasessicn.

BEQUEST POR PRODBICTION NQ. 4 Please produce any and all doruments ox other
ims supporting your alemstion that ene or mwre the Defendantt have received "kickbacks®
from Liberty Capital,

ANBWER: All such dozumenis tn Me Johnsow's possession have heen produced in thig

Hrigation; ether such docimants sre in Defendants’” prssession.

Mr. Johnson has not provided his notes or the documents referenced in his deposition. Moreover, if
the documents produced to us are only ones that came from you (through Horton, Petti, or
otherwise), then tell us that. We want to know if Mr. Johnson himself has any such documents
(other than ones you gave him).

LEWIS BRISBCIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
www, lewisbrisbois.com
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6. Request for Production No. 7

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 7: Please produce a copy of all emails or other
communications between you and any employees, agents, attorneys, ot other tepresentatives of
ANSWER: All such documents are in KNR’s possession and have already been produced in
this kwsuit,
We have a right to this information. However, if you are admitting that ALL emails and other
wyitten communications between anyone at KNR and Mr. Johnson have already been produced by
KNR, then we have no issue with this answer. Please advise.

We look forward-to your-response:

Sincerely,

Thomas B, Wennion

Thomas P. Mannion

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
www. lewisbrisbois.com
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1 STATE OF OHIO, )
COUNTY OF SUMMIT. ) S5S:
2
IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
3
MEMBER WILLIAMS, et al.,)
4 )
Plaintiffs, )
5 )
vs. ) JUDGE PAUL GALLAGHER
6 ) CASE NO. CV-2016-09-3928
KISLING, NESTICO & )
7 REDICK, LLC, et al., )
}
8 Defendants. )
9
10 THE VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION CF MATTHEW W. JOHNSON
FRIDAY, JULY &, 2018
11 - - - - =
12
13 The videotaped deposition of MATTHEW W.
14 JOHNSON, called by the Defendants for examination
15 pursuant to the Ohic Rules of Civil Procedure,
16 taken before me, the undersigned, Sarah R. Drown,
17 Registered Professicnal Reporter and Notary Public
18 within and for the State of Chio, taken at the
18 offices of Kisling, Nestico & Redick, LLC, 3412
20 West Market Street, Fairlawn, Ohio, commencing at
21 10:52 a.m., the day and date above set forth.
22
23 —
EXHIBIT
) )
25
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1 APPEARANCES :
2
On behalf of the Plaintiff:
3 Peter Pattakos, Esq.
4 PATTAKOS LAW FIRM LLC
101 Ghent Road
5 Fairlawn, Chio 44333
(330) 836-8533
6 peterlpattakoslaw.com
7
On behalf of Defendant Kisling,
8 Nestico & Redick:
9 Thomas P. Mannion, Esqg.
LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
10 1375 East 9th Street, Suite 2250
Cleveland, Chio 44114
11 (216) 344-9422
tom.mannion@lewisbrisbois.com
12
- and -
13
James M. Popson, Esqg.
14 SUTTER QO'CONNELL CO,.
3600 Erieview "Tower
15 1301 East 9%th Street
Cleveland, OChio 44114
16 (216) 928-4504
Jpopson@sutter~law.com
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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1 APPEARANCES CONTINUED:
2
On behalf of Defendant Rob A. Nestico, Esqg.:
3 David M. Best, Esqg.
4 DAVID M. BEST COC., LPA
4900 West Bath Road
5 Akron, Chio 44333
(330) 665-1855
6 dmb@dmbestlaw. com
.
On behalf of Defendant Robert W. Redick, Esqg.:
8 Daniel P. Goetz, Esqg.
9 WEISMAN, KENNEDY & BERRIS CO., LPA
1600 Midland Building
10 101 West Prospect Avenue
Cleveland, Ohioc 44115
11 (216) 781-1111
dgoetzlweismanlaw.com
12
13 ALSQ PRESENT:
14 Ivan Bercian, Videographer
15 Rob A. Nestico, hksq.
16 John J. Reagan, Esqg.
17 Robert Redick, Esg.
18
19
20
27
22
23
24
25
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1 own money? How did you pay it?
2 T paid payments out of my own money.

When did those start?
When did I start paying it?
Yes.

Almost right away.

o
Foo o @ 0 ¥ o0 o orE 0 >

7 While you were still represented by KNR?

8 Yes, sir.

9 Do you have proof of any of those payments?
10 T tried to get proof of those payments from -~
11 I think Paul Steele was my attorney. And then
12 my attorney tried to get all of the paperwork
13 when I had him take over the case.
14 Q You mean your new lawyer?

15 A Jack Morrison.

16 Q Okay. Was he able to obtain those?

17 A I don't remember. I don't have any clue.
18 o Well, you asked your new lawyer, Mr. Morrison,
19 to obtain proocf from Liberty of what payments
20 you made?

21 A Notl specifically that, but all of my paperwork
27 from KNR.

23 Q Okay. Have you ever followed up to see whether

24 KNR or Mr. Morrison obtained any documentation

25 regarding your payments to Liberty Capital-?
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1 0 Do you find it funny?
2 MR. PATTAKOS: He should.
3 A I don't --
4 MR. MANNION: Stop it.
5 A It's not that funny.
6 MR. PATTAKOS: I would like
7 you to stop it, Tom.
8 MR. MANNION: Peter, please.
9 I was very patient last time. I'm not going to
10 have you give speaking objections.
11 MR. PATTAKOS: I was very
12 patient last time, Tom.
13 MR. MANNION: Okay. That's
14 enough.
15 ) Go ahead.
16 You were laughing about that. Was there
17 something funny about that?
18 A Tt was just -—- I mean --
19 MR. PATTAKOS: Don't answer
20 that question.
21 Tom, move On.
22 MR. MANNION: You're
23 instructing him not to answer why he was
24 laughing?
25 MR. PATTAKQOS: Yes, I am. Go
Xlrfgi):%?)ﬁhl")g:tl:;li}:?(}]fgit;m‘gackson Bingham%a?];js(iﬁtlﬁi?gg Fgﬁd Rapids Lansing | M. Clcn:)eh.meéasg?:ﬁﬁ?ﬁg
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1 on.
2 MR. MANNION: Ckay.
3 MR. PATTAKOS: Ask & question,.
4 You can file a motion on that if you want.
) MR. MANNION: We'll move on.
6 0 Have you filed -- when's the last time you
7 filed taxes?
8 A Last year.
8 0 Okay. What was your gross income?
10 A I don't remember.
11 Q Yoﬁ don't even have an estimate?
12 A I don't worry about that.
13 0O More than 50,000 a year?
14 A Neo.
15 Q More than 30,000 a year?
16 MR. PATTAKOS: His taxes are
17 not relevant to this case in any way. We are
18 not going to go down this road. I'm going to
19 instruct him not to answer any guestions about
20 this. Move on.
21 Q Did you earn more than 30,000 last year?
22 MR. PATTAKOS: Take it up with
23 the Court, please, Tom. Please. Take it up
24 with the Ccurt.
25 0 Are you refusing to answer, sir?
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1 MR. PATTAKOS: I am —-

2 A I do what my lawyer —-

3 MR. PATTAKOS: -— instructing
4 him not ==

5 A -- tells me to.

5 MR. PATTAKOS: -- to answer,
7 Tom.

8 MR. MANNION: Stop. Stop.

9 MR. PATTAKOS: Matt, I'm

10 instructing you not to answer any of these

11 gquestions.
12 Move on. Let's get to the merits of this
13 case.

14 Q How much did you earn in 20167

15 MR. PATTAKOS: Don't answer
16 the question.

17 Q How much did vou earn in 20157

18 MR. PATTAKOS: Don't answer
19 the question.

20 0O How much did you earn in 20147

21 MR. PATTAKOS: Repeat. Repeat
22 objection.
23 Tom, mcve on.

24 Q On advice of counsel, you refuse to answer any

25 of those questions, sir?
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1 to answer talking about illegal drugs. It has
2 nothing to do with this case. Go ahead and
3 file a motion to compel on that, and if the
4 Court says yocu can ask questions about drug
5 use, then we can come back. OCkay?
6 O Do you agree as a representative of a class
7 that you shculd not be using illegal drugs when
8 you represent the class?

9 A T do agree with that and that's why I don't.
10 Q Okay. Is that when you stopped, when you

11 became the class representative?

12 MR. PATTAKOS: Cbjection.

13 A No.

14 MR. PATTAKOS: Move on. Move
15 on, Tom,

16 THE WITNESS: Well, the

17 answer's no, so 1t doesn't matter.

18 MR, PATTAKOS: Well, it does
19 matter.

20 Go on. This is harassment.

21 Q Do you still smoke marijuana?

22 MR. PATTAKOS: Cbijection.

24 MR. PATTAKOS: Don't answer.

25 A No.
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1 MR. PATTAKOS: Objection.
2 Don't answer,.

3 Q When did you stop?

4 MR. PATTAKQOS: Objection.
5 Don't answer.
6 Tom, move on.

7 Q Do you refuse to answer that guestion?
8 MR. PATTAKOS: Yes, he does,
9 A Yes.
10 MR. MANNION: Well, he needs
.11 to tell me that.
12 A My attorney told me not to answer it.

13 Q Okay. When you did smoke marijuana, for what

14 purpose did you do 1t?
15 MR. PATTAKOS: Obijection.
16 Don't answer. Matft, don'lt answer.

17 Q Do you refuse tc —--

18 MR. PATTAKOS: Tom —-

19 0 -— answer?

20 A Yes.

21 MR. PATTAKOS: —-— [MOVe On.
22 o] Okay. Do you have any criminal convictions
23 involving dishonesty?

24 A I don't think so.

25 Q Okay. What about whether or not it involwves
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1 we're not going tco get into this.

2 A I'm not going tc answer that.

3 MR. PATTAKOS: It's public

4 record. You can have access to the public

5 record. If you want to ask him questions about
6 this backgréund, then you can get an order from
7 the Court.

8 Q When were you arrested and for what reason?

8 MR. PATTAKOS: Go ahead. You
10 can answer that guestion.

11 A August 12, 2015,

12 0 And tell me the circumstances under which you

13 ware arrested,

14 MR. PATTAKOS: No. No.

15 That's all public record. I'm going to

16 instruct him not to answer. We're not getting

17 into that.

18 MR. MANNTON: Public record

19 is not a valid reason to instruct a witness not

20 to answer —--

21 MR. PATTAKOS: Well, but given

22 its --

23 MR. MANNION: -- a guestion.

24 MR. PATTAKOS; -— conplete

25 irrelevance to this case, you can get -- it's
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1 admissible, the fact of the conviction. That

2 is it. That is simply all that is admissible

3 in this case, Tom, the fact that he was

4 convicted for drug trafficking. The

5 circumstances are irrelevant. You don't get to

& stand up there in court and talk about and

7 relitigate his criminal case. Are you

8 disputing that?

9 MR. MANNION: Are you dcone?
1¢C MR, PATTAKOS: I'm objecting
11 and I'm instructing my witness not to answer
12 the question. TIf you want to try to explain to
13 me that you have a legitimate basis for asking
14 these abusive questions, I'm all ears,

15 otherwise we can move on. QOkay?

1é MR, MANNION: This has --

17 discoverability and relevancy at trial are two

18 different things, as you know. And we are

19 asking him these questions because not only are

20 they discoverable as to his own credibility,

21 but perhaps as to his adequacy as a class

22 representative.

23 And there's multiple other reasons. I

24 don't need to describe them all here. If you

25 want to object, you object. If you want to
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1 instruct him not to answer, you instruct him
2 not to answer.

3 o S0 you're not going to tell me the

4 circumstances under which you were arrested,

5 sir?

6 MR. PATTAKOS: He is not. I'm
7 going to instruct him not to answer.

8 O You need to tell me that.

9 A No, sir.

10 Q Okay. Who represented you in that criminal
11 case?

12 A Jack Morrison.

13 Q Did you eventually give a plea in that case?
14 A Yeah.

15 Q What did you plea guilty to?

16 A Or yes.

17 - - - - =

18 (Court reporter clarification.)

19 - - - - -

20 A Yes. I'm sorry.

21 What was that again?

22 Q What did you plea to, if at all, in that case?

23 A Like what did it plea down to?

24 ) Yeah,

25 A To be honest, I don't remember.
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1 Q And what drug were you --

2 A Exactly.

3 Q What drug were you trafficking?
4 A Just weed. Marijuana.

5 0 Marijuana?

6 You need to say yes.

7 A Yes.

8 Q Okay.
9 MR. PATTAKOS: It's legal in,
10 like, five states, Tom. Did you know that?

11 0 And you knew it was not legal in OChic at the

12 time, correct, sir?
13 MR, PATTAKXKQS: Don't answer
14 that. Move on.

15 Q) Isn't that true, sire?

le MR. PATTAKOS: Tom, move cn.
17 Don't answer that question, Matt.

18 It's irrelevant, not reasonably

19 calculated te lead to the discovery of

20 admissible evidence. 1It's harassment, 1it's
21 inappropriate, it's unprofessional. Move on.

22 0 And, sir, was OChio cne of the five states your

23 lawyer referred tc as having marijuana

24 legalized —-

25 MR, PATTAKOS: Don't answer -~
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1 Q -—- at the time you --
2 MR. PATTAKOS: -- the
3 gquestion,
4 O -—- were trafficking?
5 MR. PATTAKOS: Don't answer
6 the guestion, Matthew.
7 0 Do you refuse Lo answer?

8 A Yes, sir.

S Q Okay. And was there a minor involved in this
10 incident?
11 MR, PATTAKOS: Objection.
12 Don't answer the question. Same
13 objection.

14 O Okay. Who was it that you were contributing --

15 that you were trying to influence with these
16 drugs, if. anybody?

17 MR, PATTAKOS: Objection.
18 Don't answer the questicn.

19 Q Do you know?

20 MR. PATTAKOS: Objection.

21 Move on, Tom.

22 0 Do you know, sir?

23 MR. PATTAKOS: Again

24 objection,

25 Don't answer the guestion.
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1 0 Who else was with you at the time you were

2 arrested?
3 MR. PATTAKOS: Objection.
4 Move on.

5 Q Who was with you when you were arrested?

& MR. PATTAKOS: Again I'm

7 instructing the witness not to answer the

8 question or anything along these lines of

9 gquestions, Tom. Cool it and get a Court order.
10 Can't wait. I can't wait to see your motion on
11 this.
12 Q Sir, who was with you at the time you were

13 arrested?

14 MR. PATTAKOS;: Keep digging,
15 Tom.

16 Q Do you refuse Lo answer?

17 MR. PATTAKOS: Yes, he does.
18 A I was alone when I was arrested.

19 Q Okay.

20 MR. PATTAKOS: Matt, please.
21 Q You were alone when you were arrested?

22 A Yeah.

23 Q Okay. Do you know why you were charged with

24 corruption of another?

25 MR. PATTAKOS: Cbhbiection.
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1 Don't answer.
2 I'm instructing the witness not to answer
3 the guestion.
4 Q Do you refuse to answer that?
5 MR. PATTAKOS: Matt, just say
6 yes and let's move on.
7 A Yes.
8 Q Okay. Do you agree you were charged with
9 corruption of another --
10 MR. PATTAKOS: Objection.
11 ) —-— with drugs?
12 MR. PATTAKOS: Don't answer
13 the question.
14 This is harassment.
15 Q Do you agree with that, sir, that you were
16 charged with corrupting another --
17 MR. PATTAKOS: Matt, just keep
18 saying —-
19 Q -~ with drugs?
290 MR. PATTAKOS: -— "I refuse to
21 answer that question.™
22 A I refuse to answer that question.
23 MR, PATTAKOS: Thank vyou.
24 Q Okay. If you were a class member, would you
25 want to know whether the representative of your
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1 class had any drug convictions cor used drugs?

2 MR. PATTAKCS: Matt, once

3 again I'm instructing you not to answer that

4 question.

5 MR. MANNION: Wait. For what
6 possible basis there?

I MR. PATTAKOS: Because this

8 whole line of questioning is harassment. It's
9 not reasonably calculated to lead to the
10 discovery of relevant evidence. Go ahead and
11 brief it., I really -~ this 1is completely
12 inappropriate and abusive.

13 o What would vou expect, sir, of a class

14 representative if you were a member of a class?
15 MR. PATTAKOS: Go ahead.

16 That's

17 A Integrity.

18 Q Okay. How dc¢ you define "integrity"?

19 A Me.

20 Q You have to give me a better description than
21 that.

22 A It's the best description I can give.

23 Q What does "integrity™ mean?

24 A Me.

25 Q What is the definition of the word "integrity”
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1 A Or the fact that he's got an ownership interest
2 and he -- either that or he gets a kickback.

3 Okay. And so what evidence --
4 A Let's be real.
5 Q -— do you have that he has an ownership
6 interest or had an ownership interest in
7 Liberty Capital?
8 A I just told you.
9 o] The fact that KNR would recommend Liberty
10 Capital is your evidence that he —--
il A No.
12 O --— had an —--
13 A I'm saying there was --
14 0 -— ownership interest?
15 A There was emails that my attorney showed me
16 that were going back and forth in their
17 displeasure of what they felt was gocing on.
18 0 Okay. And you're saying you saw a specific
19 email that said Rob Nestico has an ownership or
20 financial interest in Liberty Capital?
21 A I''m not going to say it was word for word or
22 anything like that.
23 Q Well, what did these emails say?
24 A I don't know. Let me pull up my photographic
25 memory.
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1 Q Well, you're here as a class representative and

2 I'm asking what evidence that you have or
3 that --

4 A And I just --

5 Q -—- you've sgseen —-

) A -- told you.

7 0 -- that Rob Nestico had an ownership or

8 financial interest in Liberty Capital.

5 A And I just told vou.

10 Q You told me about some emails., T'm asking what
11 do they =say.

12 A I don't remember word for word what they said.
13 0 Give me a generalization.

14 A That's my generalization.

15 o A paraphrase.

16 Did they give a percentage that he owned?
17 P\ I'm being honest and telling you that I don't
18 remember.

19 Q Okay. What you're telling me is you don't have

20 any evidence of it. Do you, sir?

21 A No, that's not what I'm saying at all.

22 0 Okay.

23 A Don't put words --—

24 0 Well, name one —-

25 A Don't put words —-

MIdeps@uslegalsupport.com U. S. LEGAL SUPPORT Phone: $88.644.8080
Ann Arbor | Detroit | Flint | Jackson Bingham Farms/Scuthficld | Grand Rapids Lansing | Mt. Clemens | Saginaw | Troy

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts




CV-2016-09-3928 GALLAGHER, PAUL 11/07/2018 16:58:14 PM DPEL Page 69 of 142

JOHNSON, MATTHEW W.

07/06/2018 Page 70

i 0 -— piece of --

2 A -— in my mouth.

3 0 -— evidence you have.

4 Name one piece of evidence you have, sir.
5 You're the one making the claim, not me.

6 Name one piece of evidence.

7 Sir, you need to answer the guestion.

8 MR. MANNION: Would vyou

9 please instruct the witness to answer the
10 question.
11 MR. PATTAKOS: Matt, please

12 answer the question.

13 A I don't remember.
14 MR. PATTAKOS: Well, you've -—--
15 okay.,

16 0 As you sit here today, you can't remember any

17 evidence showing that Rob Nestico has a
18 financial interest or ownership interest in
19 Liberty Capital at any time, true?

20 A I don't remember what I saw, so I'm not going
21 to lie and tell you otherwise.

22 Q Well, I mean you're not just going to go

23 tell —--

24 A I'm not going to remember word for word. I'm

25 not going to remember the date of an email that
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1 I saw. I'm not going to remember this and that
2 and the other. Sc I'm going to tell you that I
3 don't remember.

4 Q Well, if you were being sued, wouldn't you want
5 the other side to tell you what their evidence
6 was?
7 A I mean, I guess,
8 Q Well, have you looked at the discovery requests
9 that KNR and the other defendants sent to you
10 asking you what that evidence was?

11 A I read through it, yes.

12 0 Okay.

13 A I didn't read through it, like, last night.

14 Q Did you review anything to prepare for this

1% deposition?

16 A Yeah.

17 Q What did you review?

18 A I reviewed a bunch of notes that I wrote down
19 based on what I read, but --

20 Q Okay.

21 A == I'm not -- like, just like test taking,

22 I'm

23 o Okay. Where are those notes?

24 A What do you mean where are they at?

25 Q Where are they?
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1 A They're at my home,
2 Q You didn't bring them here today?
3 A I'm not going to sit here with notes.
4 Q Okay. I would ask that you please provide
5 those notes to your attorney because you
6 reviewed them to prepare for today. So would
7 you please provide them to Mr. Pattakos?
8 MR. PATTAKOS: sure.

9 Q Then he can decide whether they're produced or
10 not.

11 A Okay.

12 0 And what documents did you review to make those
13 notes?

14 A The -- I don't know what documents they were.
15 They were documents T was provided with by my
16 attorney.

17 0 Any documents that you would have reviewed to
18 prepare for this are still at your house?

19 A Yes.

20 Q An electronic version, hard copy?

21 A Paper.

22 Q Paper. Okay.

23 If you would please let your attorney

24 know which specific documents you reviewed to
25 prepare for today, and then we will deal with
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1 is —-

2 9] What was --

3 A The emails are what stick out in my head.

4 Q What was the displeasure that the other KNR
5 attorneys were expressing to Mr. Nestico?

6 A That, I mean, in layman's terms it wasn't

7 right.

8 0 What wasn't right?

9 A The fact that he had an ownership interest in

10 the loan company.

11 Q You're saying ycu have an email where one of
12 the lawyers at KNR --

13 A I didn't say that it was an email.

14 Q Okay.

15 A Or did I say it was an email?

16 Q You did --

17 A I don't know.

18 0 -— but --

19 A I have it on the typed paper, so I don't

20 Q Okay.

21 A If it was an email, it was an email. I don't
22 know.

23 Q Are you saying that you saw some Lype of
24 documents --

25 A Document is a better word.
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1 Q —— that were generated by KNR where -- and a
2 KNR attorney told Rob Nestico I don't think
3 it's right that you recommend Liberty Capital
4 because you have a financial interest in it?

5 iy I don't know if that was word for word, but it
6 gounds like a roundabout way.

7 o) Okay. And I would ask you to please identify
8 any such documents that say that and provide

9 them to your attorney, please.
10 A Ckay.

11 0 What about with respect teo Mr. Redick, did he

12 have an ownership or financial interest in
13 Liberty Capital, do you know?
14 I don't think so.

15 What about KNR itself, did they?

A
Q

i6 A I don't think so.
0

17 Do you know why your claim on Liberty Capital
18 is against more defendants than just

19 Mr. Nestico? Or is it only against

20 Mr. Nestico?

21 A No, it's not just against Mr. Nestico, from my
22 understanding.

23 Q Tf you don't believe KNR or Mr. Redick had an

24 ownership or financial interest in Liberty

25 Capital, then why are you including them in
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1 2012 or after the time you got the loan?
2 A I would assume so.
3 Q You didn't start paying the loan before you got
4 it, did you?
5 A No.
6 Q Do you recall how long after you first got the
7 loan that you made a payment?
8 A No, sir.
9 Q It wasn't the next day, was 1it?
10 A No, sir.
i1 0 Was 1t the next week?
12 A No, sir.
13 ¢ The next month?
14 P Yes, sir. I would assume it was in August or
15 mayoe September,
16 o) And after that, would the next payment, then,
17 have been the following month?
18 A I donft remember.
15 Q Was it approximately 100 a month you were
20 paying ozx ﬁot quite?
21 A T don't know.
22 How long did these payments last?
23 A Hold on.
24 THE WITNESS: I'm getting
25 dizzy.
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1 MR. PATTAKOS: Move on. Let's
2 move on, Tom.

3 A I'm mixed in race. So that's --

4 Q I'm just asking you -—-

5 yiy I'm mixed in race. So that's irrelevant. So
e don't bring race —-

"/ Q I'm asking vou if you remember. Was he

8 Caucasian? Was he African American? Do you

9 know?

10 . MR, PATTAKOS: Tom, what's the
11 relevance of this?

12 0 Do you know?

13 MR. PATTAKOS: I'm going to
14 instruct the witness not to answer the

15 question.

16 Tom, you can add this to your motion to
17 compel.

18 o Do you in fact recall that you referred to the

19 driver as a nigger?

20 MR. PATTAKOS: I'm going to
21 instruct the witness not to answer the

22 question. Move on,

23 Q You did, didn't you, sir?

24 MR. PATTAKOS: Move on.

25 Matt, don't answer.
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1 Let's move on.
2 Matt, don't --

3 Q Do you recall the expletives that you used

4 against the bus company?

5 MR. PATTAKOS: Expletives that
6 he used against the party that caused him

7 damages are not relevant to this case in any

8 conceivable, legitimate way.

S Tom, please stop harassing the witness I
10 will ask you again.

11 Matt, don't answer the question.

12 Tom, let's move on to something that is
13 remotely relevant. T know it's hard.

14 Q Do you refuse to answer those questions --

15 MER. PATTAKOS: Yes.
16 Q —-— on the advice of counsel, sir?
17 MR. PATTAKOS: He does.

18 A Yes,

13 Q Okay.

20 MR. MANNION: Please stop
21 talking over us.

22 Q 50 do you recall what the bus company's offer
23 to you was at the time you left KNR?

24 A No.

25 C Do you recall if there even was an offer?
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1 Q Currently does anybody else live with you?

2 MR. PATTAKOS: I'm geoing to
3 instruct him not to answer this. This is

4 harassment too.

5 0 Who have you talked to about this case other

6 than your lawyers?

7 Have you talked to anybody clse about
8 this case?

9 A No.

10 Q Well, have you talked to any friends or

11 girlfriends?

12 A Sometimes I forget it's even going on until T
13 call him or he calls me.

14 Q Okay. Do you do anything proactively to see
15 what's geing on in the case?

16 A What do you mean by "proactively"?

17 Q Do you do anything on your own initiative to
18 see what's going on in the case?

19 A Like research?

20 Q Look at the docket, anything.

21 How do you keep apprised of what's going

22 on?

23 A I have an attorney so that T don't -- I trust

24 my attorney. I don't have to worry about that

25 kind of thing. But when he presents me with
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1 A Can I ask a guestion, a little question?
2 MR. PATTAKOS: Go ahead and
3 answer. Matt, please just go ahead. Just
4 answer the question.
5 A April of 2014 or '15.
6 Q Okay. And when you first moved in there, was
7 it just you and your son?
8 MR. PATTAKOS: Cbjection. I'm
9 not asking -- he's not going to answer
10 gquestions about his living arrangements.
11 0 Please identify all individuals who have ever
12 lived with you --
13 MR. PATTAEOS: Yeah, no.
14 Q -— at Thayer Street other than you and your
15 SON.
16 MR. PATTAKOS: Nope. Not
17 going to go there,
18 Q Who are your pricor girlfriends in the last --
19 MR. PATTAKOS: Not going to go
20 there. Yeah, not going to go there, Tom,.
21 yiy Are you serious?
22 MR. PATTAKOS: Yeah, no.
23 A Man.
24 MR, PATTAKCS: No. Matt,
25 don't answer the questions. Tom knows what
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1 A I lived with a friend.
2 MR. PATTAKOS: Tom, how is it
3 relevant? He deoesn't want to bring other
il people's names into this.
5 Q Are you not going to answer the guestion?
& MR. PATTAKOS: He'll answer
7 the guestion. I'll instruct him to answer the
8 question if you can explain a remotely
9 conceivable basis for why it would be relevant
10 to this case.
11 Sir, are you going to answer the question?
12 A I lived there with my friend Dan.
13 MR. PATTAKOS: Matt, T'm -~
i4 A I''m not going to --
15 MR. PATTAKOS: -- instructing
16 you not —- |
17 Q ~— give you his —-
18 MR. PATTAKOS: -— to answer
19 these questions,
20 A —-— full name, sir.
21 ) You refuse to?
22 MR. PATTAKOS: Yes, he does.
23 A T refuse To on the
24 MR. PATTAKOS: On the advice
25 of counsel.
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1 S —

2 o I'm going to show you what's been marked as

3 Exhibit 1 for identification and ask if you can
4 identify that, please.

5 Have you seen this before?

6 A Uh-huh.

7 Q I'm sorry?

8 A Uh-huh.

9 G You need to say "yes" or —-
10 A No.
11 Q -~ 'no," please. Ckay.
12 And can you didentify this for the record?
13 What is it?

14 A It's a document.

15 Q What type of document, sir?

16 A It looks like a court document.

17 Q Okay. What's the title of it?

18 A It's a -—— it's a —— for the deposition for
19 Member.

20 0 Okay. And did this document, Exhibit 1, ask
21 you to bring anything with you today?
22 Look at page 3.

23 A Yeah.

24 Q Did you bring any documents today in response

25 to this notice?
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1 A No, sir.

2 Q Did you bring any documents at all with you
3 today?

4 A No, sir.

5 Q Did you provide your attorney with any

6 documents that are respvonsive to these

7 requests?

g yiy No, sir.

9 Q Have you provided your attorney any documents
10 in this case?
11 A No, sir.

12 Q Has anybody other than Mr. Pattakos prowvided
13 you any documents in this case?
14 A No.

15 0 Who else other than the lawyer .who you can't

16 remember who tock over for your initial lawyer,
17 your initial lawyer, and the initial guy who

18 came out to your house, do you recall

19 interacting with anybody else at KNR?

20 A Through the case or in general?

21 Q Both.

22 A No.

23 o Do you recall any of the names of anybody else
24 at KNR who you interacted with?

25 A Nope.
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1 Q Is that what you're saying?
2 A That's not what I'm saying.

3 Q Why didn't you bring anything responsive to

4 this request?
5 MR. PATTAKOQOS: Because I
) didn't advise him to, Tom. Let's move on.

7 yay Yeah, I do what my lawyer tells me tc, man.

b Q Do you have possession of any documents

9 relating tc communications between yourself and
10 KNR?
11 : MR, PATTAKOS: Tom, why don't
12 you review the docket for the pending motions.
13 We know you have a pending motion to compel.
14 We have filed a motion for protective order.
15 It's all pending. I don't know why you're
16 asking the witness about this or why you even
17 served a notlce of deposition duces tecum,
18 which isn't even a thing under Ohio law. So,
19 you know, let's move on. Please.

20 Q Do you recall, sir, in discovery being asked
21 for any documents relating to communications
22 between yourself and anybody at KNR?

23 Fiy No, I don't recall that.

24 Q Have you ever provided any documents to your

) attorney regarding any communications between
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1 Q Okay. Do you know what potential class they

2 are representatives of?
3 A Class C.
4 Q No, you're Class C, right, sir?
5 A Yeah,
6 Q Okay. Do you know whether Naomi Wright, Member
7 Williams, or Thera Reid are purpcrted
8 representatives or representatives of any other
9 classes?
10 A Yeah, I would assume so, but I
11 8] You don't pay attention to those?
i2 A Yeah, I do what I'm told to, man.
13 Q Okay. Do you view yourself as a potential
14 member of the other classes in this case other
15 than Class C?

16 A No, T don't believe so.

17 o In what -- in your -- what's your understanding
18 of what Class C is?

19 A T could have told you Tuesday when I reviewed
20 everything. Bul the fireworks just blew my

21 mind away. Sorry.

22 Q I hope we den't have a trial close to the

23 Fourth of July.

24 A I know.

25 C Okay. BSo as you sit here today, can you

MIdeps@uslegalsupport.com U. 5. LEGAL SUPPORT Phone: 888.644.8080
Ann Arboer | Detroit | Flint | Jackson Bingham Farms/Southfield | Grand Rapids Lansing | Mt. Clemens | Saginaw | Troy

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts




CV-2016-09-3928

GALLAGHER, PAUL

JOHNSON, MATTHEW W,

11/07/2018 16:58:14 PM DPEL Page 84 of 142

07/06/2018 Page 133
1 describe for us what Class C is, who those
2 potential members are?
3 A I'm not going to lie to you.
4 Q I'm not asking you to lie. You're under oath.
5 I'm asking: What's your understanding of what
6 Class C 1is?
7 A I can't ——- I can't -- I can't explain that to
g you right now.
9 9] Do you think that a class representative has a
10 duty to understand what the class is?
11 A Yeah.
12 0 Is there some reason you don't?
13 A Because I'm Just overwhelmed right now.
14 0 Overwhelmed with what?
i5 A Just being here in general,
16 0 Okay. So do you think that a class
17 representative should be able to answer
18 questions in front of a jury and a judge or at
19 a deposition in order to represent the other
20 class members?
21 A If T had known I was able to bring my notes, I
22 would be fine.
23 Q Who told you you couldn't bring your notes?
24 A I didn't -- I didn't know. I didn't even think
25 about it. I just left them right on the
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1 A T didn't forget it. I left it there because I
2 didn't think I was allowed to have it. T
3 didn't know what the rules were.

4 Q The information that is written down in those
5 documents, did you know you had forgotten that
6 information when you left to come here today?
7 A Not intentionally. I mean, my mind is drawing
8 a blank because I'm not a very good test taker.
9 Q Okay. This isn't a test. We're asking you
10 what your allegations are against the
11 defendants and what your basis for those
12 allegations are, and you can't give us those
13 without your notes?
14 MR. PATTAKOS: Cbjection.
15 A I know what it is in layman's terms. All of
16 your other questions --
17 That's what I want to know.
18 A All your other questions --
19 Q What are layman's terms?
20 What are layman's terms of your
21 allegations against the defendants?
22 A This was discussed a long time ago.
23 Q What is your understanding in layman's terms —-
24 A The —-
25 Q -— of the allegations —--
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1 A The --
2 Q -— against the defendants?

3 A The main reason that we are here is because of

4 his ownership interest in Liberty Capital
5 loans. Period. That's it. That's why we're
6 here.

7 o Are you saying that if you knew that

8 Mr. Nestico or somebody at KNR had an ownership
9 interest in Liberty Capital you would not have
10 agreed to the loan?

11 A Heck no.
12 Q Ckay.

13 A That would be, like, a red flag.

14 Q And you had mentiocned some red flags earlier,
15 and I'm not sure you got done telling me all of
16 them.

17 What other red flags did you see when you
18 were represented by KNR?

19 A I don't know, man.

20 Q Well, you're the one who told me.

21 Do you recall any as you sit here?

22 A No, sir,

23 Q Do you recall any red flags as it related to
24 the TLiberty Capital loan to you?

25 A I mean, the biggest red flag is the ownership
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1 than your name and -- well, let me ask you
2 this: What information did you provide to
3 Mr. Pattakos that is referenced in the
4 complaint, do you know? Information you
5 provided that he didn't already have.
6 A I think he already had everything he needed.
7 Q Do you happen to know where he got it?
8 A No.
9 Q Okay. By the way, what is your responsibility
10 as a class representative as it relates to
11 settlement? Do you know?

12 A I have that answer in my notes. Does that
13 help?

14 0 You do?

15 A Yeah.

16 Q Okay. That will. We'll take a look at those

17 notes and maybe come back then.

18 Why don't you turn to page 5. Well,

19 before you do, let me ask you another question.
20 Now, earlier you said you don't really

21 remember what Paul said to you, if at all,

22 regarding Liberty Capital other than pay it off
23 as quick as you can because of the interest.

24 Is that fair?

25 A Yes, sir.
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1 really.

2 Q Okay. ©So you're not going to come in and say

3 that Paul or anybody at KNR told you or

4 recommended that you get a loan with Liberty in
5 the first couple of months, February --

6 A I don't remember what --

7 Q —-- March, April --

8 A -— company --

9 0 -—- May, June 2012, true?
10 A I don't remember what company he was talking

11 about at that.point.

12z Q Okay.

13 - - - = -

14 (Defendants’' Exhibit 9 was marked.)

s - = - = -

16 Q If we now look at Exhibit 9, are these anocther
17 set of emails between you and Jenna?

18 A It looks like it.

19 Q Earlier in this deposition, you told me you

20 don't recall any emails with anybody at KNR.
21 Do you now agree that you emailed with
22 KNR?

23 A It looks like it.

24 o Do you know how many times you emailed with

25 KNR?
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1 A No, sir, I don't.
2 Q You knew Jenna —- excuse nme.
3 You spcke with Jenna on the phone and/or
4 emailed with her a total of dozens of times,
5 fair?
6 A I don't know. I didn't count them all.
7 Q Over 10, sir, you would agree?
8 A I would have to take some time here to count
9 them.
10 o} Okay. Well, if we look at the bottom of
11 Exhibit 9, you sent an email to Jenna July 16,
12 2012, at 12:02 p.m., true? At the bottom.
13 iy Yes, sir.
14 0 And can you read the subject line?
15 If ycu go kack to the first page, please,
16 sir. The subject line of that email.
17 A "Anymore help available."
18 Q Any more help available, is that what you said?
19 A Exactly.
20 Q And by "help," what did you mean?
21 A I don't know. Six years ago.
22 Q Let's lock at the email on the next page.
23 "This doesn't need to waste phone time,
24 just wondering if there was any financial boost
25 available anymore till the end.™
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1 Did I read that correctly?
2 Sir?

3 A Yep.

4 Q And so when you said "any more help available,"

5 you were talking about financial help, true?
6 A I don't know. It's kind of wvague.
7 Q The email ycu sent to her is kind of vague?
8 A It just says help.
9 Q And in the body of it, you asked for any

10 financial boost available, true?

i1 A Agree.

12 Q And you indicated in there that you had missed
13 some work and so you thought you would email
14 and ask her, true?

15 A That's what it looks like.

16 e Okay. Now 1f you go to the first page of that

17 Exhibit 9, please.
18 Did Jenna respond to you, from locking at
19 this exhibit?
20 A It looks 1like she replied at 12:12.
21 C Within 10 mlinutes?
22 2N Yep.
23 Q And what Jenna told you was, "The only option
24 available is for you to take out a loan against
25 your case, but you have to pay interest on
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1 it...so0 essentially you're paying money to
2 borrow money."
3 Ts that what she told you?

4 A It sure looks like it.

5 0 "But 1f the need is necessary, I can definitely
6 get you the information."
7 Did I read that correctly?

8 A Sure did.

9 Q SO you knew whatever loan it was that YOu were
10 going to take there would be interest to pay,
11 true?

12 A Yes, sir.

13 Q Now, you've told us already that the 50 percent

14 or whatever you recall the interest being was
15 exorbitant. Those are your words, something
16 similar to that?

17 iy Yes.

18 @] What do you believe the interest should have
19 been?

20 A T don't know.

21 Q Okay.

22 A I'm not a financial

23 0 I mean what you're complaining about is that
24 the interest was too high, fair?

25 A Well, 1'm not complaining that the interest is
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1 high, I'm complaining that the owner -- the
2 sole owner of the loan company was an attorney.

3 Q The sole owner of Liberty Capital was an

4 attorney?

5 A Yes, sir.

6 Q You're referring to Mr. Nestico?

7 A Yes, sir.

8 ¢ What if you find out that he has no ownership

9 interest in Liberty Capital? Will you withdraw
10 your claim?

11 A Isn't that why we're here?

12 Q My question to you was: If you find out he

13 has —-- that Mr. Nestico has no financial
14 interest in Liberty Capital, will vou withdraw
15 your claim against -him?

16 A Well, since that's not the case, we don't have
17 to worry about withdrawing the claim, do we?
18 0 That wasn't the guestion, though, sir.

19 A That's my answer,

20 0 If you find out that Mr. Nestico has no

21 financial or ownership interest in Liberty
22 Capital and did not at the time you took the
23 loan, do you agree to withdraw the claim

24 against him?

25 A I answered your question.
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1 Liberty Capital, do you still intend on being a
2 class representative suing him claiming that he
3 does have 1t?

4 A Say that one more time.

5 0 Sure.

6 If you find out that your factual

7 allegation that Mr. Nestico has a financial
8 interest or ownership interest in Liberty

9 Capital is in fact false, will you agree to
10 withdraw that allegation?

11 A No.
12 O Why not?

13 A Because that's my answer.
14 Q Even if it's not true, you'll pursue it?

15 A Why not?

16 Q Okay. And dc you think that would be good
17 advice for you to give to the other prospective
18 class members?

1@ yiy Absolutely.

20 Q Great. Ckay.

21 MR. PATTAKOS: Tom, he's going

22 to rely on the advice of his attorneys and he

23 knows if we don't have evidence for the claims

24 we're not going to pursue them. Okay? If

25 you're worried about that or if you think
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1 MR. PATTAKOS: I'm not
2 testifying. Okay.
3 0 As the representative of --

4 A I've answered your question. That's the end of
5 that question.
& MR. PATTAKOS: Go ahead, Matt.

7 Q As the representative of this purported Class

8 C, 1f you find there is no evidence to support
9 - the claims of that class, will you agree to
10 withdraw as the representative =--

11 2y It's irrelevant because --
12 0 -— of that class?

13 A ~— there is evidence.

14 O That wasn't the question.

1h Y2y That's how I'm answering your question.

16 0O You refuse to answer it?
17 A I'm not refusing to answer it. That's how I'm
13 answering it.

12 Q Okay. And what if there is no evidence?

20 You'll still proceed like you told me earlier?
21 B There i1s evidence.

22 o] What is it?

23 A I don't remember all of it. T told you that
24 three times now.

25 Q OCkay. Well --
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1 MR. PATTAKOCS: Okay. Matt --
2 Q -- but my question is --

3 MR. PATTAKOS: -— just take it

4 easy, buddy.

5 @] -—- 1f you don't remember it and you can't point

6 to any of it here and you find out later that

7 there is no such evidence, would you agree --

8 A I don't have to know all the evidence. 1I'm not

9 an attorney.

10 MR. PATTAKOS: Tom, this is —--
11 0 If you find --

12 - MR. PATTAKOS: -- ridiculous.
i3 Please move on.

14 ¢ -— out that there's no evidence to support the
15 claim, will you withdraw it?

16 A No, sir

17 Q - Okay.

18 A Dumb fuck.

19 MR. PATTAKOS: I'"1l do it for
20 him, I promise.

21 0 Now if you keep looking at Exhibit 9, please,
22 sir. 1In response to what Jenna told you, you
23 responded to her another 10 minutes later by

24 saying, "I'd be willing to look into it to see
25 how worth it it would be to help me get ahead."”
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1 wherever you're at.
2 @ Okay. Well, you do agree that you must have
3 got this fax cover sheet, because you wrote on
4 it, right?
5 A Yeah.
6 0 Now if you turn to the second page of this, and
7 at the bottom they're called Bates stamp
8 numbers, it weculd be KNR0O1651.
9 Are you at that page?
10 ‘A So the second page?
11 @] Yes.
12 And at the top it indicates it was your
13 name, Matthew Johnson, and by this time you
14 lived at Edwin Avenue, true?
15 A Yes, sir
16 0 And what were the circumstances of you moving
17 out of your parents' home?
18 MR. PATTAKOS: Cbjection.
19 This is —-- same cbjection as before. Let's
20 move on,
21 Q Sir, do you recail?
22 MR. PATTAKOS: I'm instructing
23 him not to answer that question.
24 0 Sir, do you recall?
25 MR. PATTAKOS: Tom, IT'm
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1 instructing him not to answer the guestion.
2 Ask another question.
3 0 And do you recall, sir, that your father got in
4 your face and salid you were a sponge and he
5 wanted you out?
6 MR. PATTAKOS: Ch, my God.
7 G Do you recall that, sir?
8 MR. PATTAKOS: Good one, Tom.
9 The judge is going to love this.
10 Matt.
11 0 IT'm asking.
12 MR. PATTAKQOS: Matt.
13 Let's mcve on. You know what, we're
14 going --
15 Q You were --
16 MR. PATTAKOS: -— to take a
17 break.
18 Q -— having financial --
19 MR. MANNION: Noe. I'm in the
20 middle of a guesticn.
21 MR, PATTAKOS: No. Tom, we're
22 going to take a break.
23 MR. MANNION: No, wa're not.
24 We're in the middle —-
25 MR. PATTAKOS: We're going
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1 this.

2 Q Do you remember doing that?

3 MR. PATTAKOS;: We're not doing
4 this. We're not doing this.
5 Don't answer the guestion.

3 Q Do you remember using the word F-U-C-K or

7 _ something similar, whether it's F-U-C-K-E-R or
8 something similar, a little bit earlier when
9 answering questions on video?

10 A I don't know.

11 Q That's not something you would want to blurt

12 out in front of a jury, is it, to represent the
13 class?

14 A No.

15 0 I mean, that would look bad, wouldn't it®?

le A Probably.

17 o Yeah. So if that's something you did and you
18 can't even remember it, does that raise some

19 concern in your mind as to whether --

20 MR. PATTAKOS: No, Tom, it

21 doesn't. Let's move on.

22 MR, MANNICN: I wasn't asking
23 you, Peter.

24 MR. PATTAKCS: Tom, this is --
25 MR. MANNTON: Stop it.
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1 MR. PATTAKOS: -— abusive.
2z MR. MANNICN: Please stop.
3 MR. PATTAKOS: It is abusive.
4 ITt's impermissible. The judge isn't going to
5 allow it. I wish we could get on the phone
6 right now with him. Tom, move on. File a
7 motion.

8 Q It would look pretty bad, wouldn't it, sir?

9 MR. PATTAKOS: File a motion.
10 Matt, I'm going teo instruct you to stop
11 answering any questions along these lines.

12 Add it to the list,

13 Q Turn 1f you would again to the next page.

14 Do you see on thisg that the amount you
15 were requesting for a loan was $250? Do you
16 see that?

17 A Yes, sir.

18 Q And, in fact, you were going to sign this

19 document at the end. If we look all the way to

20 it says page 6 at the top but it's page 5 of

21 the document.

22 Sorry about that. Keep going.

23 I meant page 8 of the document. Page 7

24 of the loan document. Do you see where there's

25 a signature?
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1 It's still not ethically moral.
2 Okay.
3 A If that's the right way to say it.
4 o] Well, do you know as a class representative
5 whether you can sue a lawyer for damages for an
6 alleged ethical viclation as opposed to
7 actually being damaged financially?
8 A Like in a separate suit or?
9 In this suit.
10 A I don't know. I would have to review if that's
11 in my notes or not.
12 MR. PATTAKOS: We already won
3 the motion to strike on this, Tom.
14 0 Okay.
15 MR. PATTAKOS: We already won
16 this legal issue.
17 ME. MANNTION: Stop it.
18 Please.
18 0 If this would have been a reasonable interest
20 rate and reasonable fees, are you saying your
21 only damage would be from the ethical part of
22 it?
23 A No, I'm nct saying that at all.
24 Q Okay. 1f this was reasonable fees and
25 reasonable interest, what would your damage be?
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1 Q And as the class representative, what were you
2 referring to when you said "kickback payment"?
3 A Like when you have a deal with a company and
4 you get, like, a kickback or a stipend or a
5 stiff -- spiff or, you know, whatever.

6 Q Okay. What evidence did you have that they

7 received such a --

8 MR. PATTAKOS: Tom.

9 Q -— kickback —-

10 MR. PATTAKOS: For heaven's

11 sake, he's answered this question a hundred

12 times.

13 Q Sir.

14 A The only evidence that I've seen -- the

15 evidence that T've seen is the emails between
16 other attorneys in the law firm and Mr. Nestico
17 that were —-- they were trying to show their

18 displeasure or their not agreeing to what, you
19 know, what they thought was going on or
20 whatever.
21 0 Did any cof those emails indicate that any of
22 the defendants were receiving a kickback?
23 A T don't —— I don't remember. TIt's been I don't
24 know how long since T saw those emails.

25 Q Do you have any evidence that any actual
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1 A I know it's true because I trust my attorney,
Z his abilities to do what he has tc do in this
3 case.

4 Q But you can't show me any proof of a kickback?

5 How much was it?
& MR. PATTAKOS: Tom, let's move
7 Oll.

8 Q How much was the kickback?
9 A I don't know. You tell me.

10 Q What are you claiming?

11 MR. PATTAKOS: Tom, you're not
12 giving us any discovery in this case. S0 how
13 are we ever supposed to know?

14 MR. MANNION: Stop it.

15 o How much are vou claiming the kickback was?

16 A I don't know. You tell me.

17 Q Well, if you find out there was no kickback,

18 will you withdraw this claim?

19 yay No, sir.

20 MR. PATTAKOS: We already told
21 you we would, Tom.

22 ) Why not?

23 A Because.

24 O You would pursue this claim about a kickback

25 even 1f there was no kickback?
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1 A Yeah.
2 Q Okay.
3 MR. PATTAKOS: Move to strike.
4 Q If you go to page 33, paragraph 121. I'm
5 sorry, paragraph 122.
6 Can you read 122 out loud, please, for
1 the record?
g A "The KNR Defendants knew that many KNR clients
9 would be unable to repay their Liberty Capital
10 loans until their lawsuits resolved, a process
11 that often takes years.”
12 Q Now, your particular loan was paid before vyour
13 lawsuit resolved, correct?
14 A I'm pretty sure. I don't know.
15 ) S0 your situation would be different from those
16 clients you're referencing here?
17 Is that true, sir?
18 A I'm -— I don't remember.
19 0 To find out whether those KNR clients were able
20 to repay their loans before their lawsuits
21 resolved, we would have to go talk to each of
22 those clients, wouldn't we?
23 A I would assume so.
24 Q We'd have to lock at each of those loan
25 agreements and repayments separately, wouldn't
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1 we?
2 Jiy I would -- makes —- makes sense.

3 Q And what evidence did you have that KNR

4 defendants knew KNR clients would be unable to
5 repay their loans until their lawsuit resolved?
6 Did you have any?

7 A Yeah.

3 0 What was it?

9 A I don't remember, man. Like I said, I have
10 netes at home.

11 Q Ckay. If you look at page 34, paragraph 124.

12 And in the middle of this, it says that the KNR
13 attorney stated "I am not endorsing or

14 recommending this transaction."

15 Did T read that correctly?

1o A Correct.

17 o Okay. And is that the same as what cccurred in

18 your case, they were not endorsing or

15 recommending the transaction, they put that in

20 the loan papers? Do you know?

21 A T don't remember.

22 Q Do you recall?

23 A T don't remember.

24 0 You're not sure?

25 A No, sir.
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1 Q Okay. If you would look back at the loan

2 agreement, Fxhibit 11, please.

3 Sir, Exhibit 11. Right underneath that,
4 I believe.

5 Go to the very last page. Five lines up
6 from the bottom in the middle starting with the
7 word "While." Dc you see that?

8 "Wnile I am not.™

9 A Uh-huh.

10 Q "While I am not endorsing or recommending this
11 transaction."

12 Did I read that part of the sentence

13 correctly?

14 A Yes, sir.

15 Q And it's signed by KNR, true?

16 A Yes, sir.

17 Q 5o that would be referencing KNR was not

18 endorsing or reccmmending this transaction,

19 correct?

20 iy Yes, sir.
21 0 And you initialed that knowing that, true?

22 A Yes, sir.

23 9 And it then goes on to say, "I have reviewed

24 the contract and all costs and fees have been

25 disclosed to my client.”
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1 And those were disclosed to you, correct?

2 A Yes, sir.

3 Q "including the annualized rate of return

4 applied to calculate the amount to be repaid by
5 my client.”

6 That was also disclosed to you, true?

7 It's in the document, true?

8 A Yes, sir.
9 0 Okay. $So that was disclosed to you as well,
10 correct?

11 A Yes, sir.

12 Q Yel in paragraph 124 you're claiming in a court
i3 document that this was a false representation.
14 Do you still maintain that?

15 A Yes, sir.

16 O What was false about it?

17 A I don't remember.

18 0 You can't tell us what was false about it?

19 A No, sir.

20 Q And if that statement is actually true, would
21 you agree to withdraw that claim?

22 A No.

23 Q You wouldn't wlithdraw that one either, even if
24 it's not true?

25 A No, sir.
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1 Q Okay. If you would turn to page 41, please.
2 For Class C there's a number of items
3 listed that apply to the class members
4 purportedly and i indicates "Defendants, as a
5 matter of KNR firm policy, recommended to their
5 clients that they obtain loans with Liberty
7 Capital.”
8 Did I read that correctly?
5 A Yes, sir.
10 0 Are you aware that they have c¢lients who have
11 testified that, in fact, rather than being
12 recommended to take loans they're advised
13 against taking loans?
14 MR. PATTAKOS: Objection.
15 A I don't know, sir.
16 Q Yocu would have to ask each of those clients
17 separately what was recommended to them and
18 what wasn't,  true?
19 A I don't know, sir.
20 o Well, how would you find out what was
21 recommended tc them?
22 A Probably have to interrogate them all day too.
23 Q And you certainly aren't claiming that the
24 potential members of Class C all had the same
25 conversations that you had with either Paul
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1 Steele or Jenna or anybody at KNR, are You?
2 A Everybody's situation's different.
3 Q Everybody's situation is different, correct,
4 sir?
5 yiy I think in this case there's -- like, that's
6 why there's Class C and there's different
7 classes, right?
8 9, My question to you is: Members of Class C,
9 you're not saying they all had the same
10 conversations as you had, are you?
11 A Wouldn't that be why we're all in the same
12 class?
13 Q 50 are you alleging that simply advising
14 clients of the potential For a loan was the
15 recommendation that KNR made to its clients?
16 A Yeah.
17 Just that it was available?
18 A T mean it wasn't -- nobody put a gun tc my head
19 because they're not that stupid. |
20 Q Do you know how the discussions went between
21 KNR and any other clients?
22 A No.
23 9 The next Roman numeral, ii, "Defendants
24 received kickback payments for every loan
25 transaction that Liberty Capital completed with
R Arbor | Betsal | Finé nclson  Bingham FarmnuSumhnel | Grond Rapids Lansing | M, Cloar i SB.6148080
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1 KNR clients.”

2 What do you base that on?

3 A I don't know.

4 MR. PATTAKOS: Excuse me.

5 ) You have no idea if it's true, do you?

6 MR. MANNION: Objection.

7 A Yeah, I do.

g8 MR. PATTAKOS: Objection.

9 Tom.

10 0 What's it based on, then?

11 MR. PATTAKOS: Objection.

12 Matthew, don't answer —-

13 MR. MANNION: You can

14 object --

15 MR. PATTAKOS: -- the

16 question.

17 MR. MANNION: -- for the

18 record.

19 o} What's it based on?

20 MR.APATTAKOS: What I'm

21 objecting is that you are mischaracterizing the
22 complaint which says that these are guestions.
23 These are legal issues. These issues include
24 the determinations as to whether. Ckay? So
25 don't tell him that this is something that he
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1 alleged.
2 Are you --
3 MR. PATTAKOS: This is
4 something that needs to be examined through
5 discovery in this case, that the allegations
6 that have been put forward have left these
7 inferences open. We are entitled to discovery
8 to discover them. Stop grilling him as if he's
9 saying that they exist or that it's happened.
10 Okay?
11 Well, you Jjust told me that they exist.
12 No, I didn't.
13 MR. MANNION: Can we read
14 back the last guestion and his answer to me,
15 please.
16 - - - = =
17 (Requested portion of the record was read.)
== = = -
19 MR. MANNTON: We'll have to
20 look at the vidso on that.
21 What you had just told me, sir, is you believe
22 that that's true, that thev received kxickback
23 payments on every loan transaction, true?
24 Yes.
25 Okay. What is that based on?
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1 y2y Based on all of the evidence that we gathered
2 in this case.

3 C And can you identify one kickback payment?

4 One.

5 A I don't need to.

6 Q That's not what I asked you. I said: Can you
7 identify one kickback payment?

8 A And my answer is I don't need to.

S Q That's not my guestion.

10 Can you --

11 MR. PATTAKOS: He's answered
12 your guestion, Tormn,.

13 A That's my answer. T'm answering your

14 question --

15 MR. PATTAKOCS: Move cn.

16 0 No, you're not.

17 A -— Tom.

1B O No, you're not.

19 Can you identify -—-

20 A That's my answar Lo the guestion.

21 MR. PATTAKOS: Matt, why

22 donft --

23 o Can you identify one kickback payment for any
24 loan transaction?

25 Ay T don't need to.
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1 Q That's not my question.
2 A That's my answer,
3 0O Sir.
4 MR. PATTAKCS: Let's take a
5 break.
6 Q No.
7 A We don't need to take a break.
8 ) Can you identify --
9 A Let's get this over with.
10 Q -- a single kickback payment from Liberty
11 Capital to any of the KNR defendants for any
12 loan transaction, a single one?
13 A I don't need to.
14 Q That's not my question. Can you?
15 A Are we going to do this for another --
1o O Well, you have to answer the question, sir.
17 MR. PATTAKOS: He did answer
18 the qguestion, Tom.
18 A That's my answer.
20 MR. PATTAKOS: That's his
21 answer. If you don't like it --
22 0 It's a yes or no. Can you identify one?
23 MR. PATTAKOS: If you don't
24 like his answer, Tom -- you don't get to pick
25 his answer.
o ?ﬁ%ﬁlgﬂlﬁ?f(fﬁithct‘];l]}acl(son Bingha et fgﬁd Rapids Lansing | M. cuﬂh‘?ﬁ“é:.ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁg
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1 0 You don't —--
2 MR. PATTAKOS: Ask another --
3 0 —— know the law.
4 MR. PATTAKOS: —- guestion.
5 0 You already tecld me that, sir. So whether you
6 have to or not is a different issue -~
7 MR. PATTAKOS: Ask another --
8 Q —- than whether you can.
9 MR. PATTAKOS: Ask a new —-
10 A I'm sorry.
11 MR. PATTAKOS: - —-— question,
12 Tom. "You got your answer.
13 Q Please identify for me all kickback payments
14 that you know about for any loan transaction
15 that Liberty Capital completed with KNR.
16 A What was the question?
17 0 Sure.
18 Please identify for me any kickback
19 .payment that you are aware of for any loan
20 transaction that Liberty Capital completed with
21 KNR clients.
22 A You want me to show you?
23 Q I asked you to identify any. Can you?
24 A Not right now.
25 Q When do you plan on doing that?
A Arior | Delro| Tint | Jackoon  Bingham FarmafSotbid| Orand Rapids  Lansing] M. Clomens| Srehunn | ooy
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1 A I don't know, sir.
2 o Okay. Go now to page 49, please, Claim 7.
3 Now, befcre we get into this particular
4 page, sir -- sir. FExcuse me.
5 A Yeah.
6 Q Before we get into this particular page, are
i you telling me that anybody at KNR told you
g that the best source of loan funding was
9 Liberty Capital?
10 A Liberty Capital's the only one I ever heard of.
11 Q Did anybody from KNR tell you Liberty Capital
12 was the best source of loan funding?
13 A Liberty Capital is the only one I ever heard
14 of.
15 Well, what about Preferred Capital?
16 A I don't remember Preferred Capital.
17 Q Well, if Paul remembers talking to you about
18 Preferred Capital, are you disputing that?
19 A No, I'm not, TI'm not confirming or denying it.
20 I'm telling you I don't remember.
21 Q Okay. ©So did anybody at Liberty Capital tell
27 you that the best source of loan funding -~ I'm
23 30rry.
24 Did anybody at KNR tell you Liberty
25 Capital was the best source of loan funding?
Aun Arbor | Detrol| Fint [Jaclson  Binghom FarmsSomthicd | Oraud Rapids  Lansing | M. Clmens | Saghio | Troy
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1 A T don't remember.

2 Q Okay. Is there a reason that you have this as
3 an allegation against the defendants in a

4 complaint if you don't even recall if it's
5 true?

0 . Are you going to answer the question?
7 A I was reading real quick.

8 What was the question?

9 MR. MANNION: Please read
10 back the question.

11 - - = = -

12 (Requested portion of the record was read.)
13 L

14 A Yeah, because I trust my attorney.

15 Q And what evidence do you have that anybody at

16 KNR told you the best source of loan funding

17 was Liberty Capital? If you don't recall, then
18 how would your lawyer know?

19 A Well, I mean, that's what -- he's the lawyer.
20 0 Okay. But you can't‘recall?

21 A I don't remember everything.

22 Q OCkay. It says also that the defendant induced
23 you to take out a loan with Liberty.

24 What do you mean by that?

25 A I don't know.
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1 the money coming out of settlement proceeds,
2 the money to pay back your loan never did come
3 out of settlement proceeds, did it?
4 A I never —— I never —-—- I never got a settlement
5 from -- because cf KNR.
6 Q That wasn't my guesticn, sir.
7 The loen that you repaid or you claim to
8 have repaid Liberty was not repaid out of
9 settlement proceeds, was 1it?

10 A I don't believe so.

11 Q Okay. I'm asking what statements, 1f any, by
12 KNR did you rely on in.entering into your loan
13 with Liberty Capital?

14 A T don't know if it was a particular statement,

15 but it dust -- more of like a convenience, T
16 guess, to me.
17 Q Explain what you mean.

18 A Just that it was convenient. It was there, you
19 know, why not take it. -

20 0 Okay. And other than the fact that it was

21 convenient and it was there, was there any

22 other statement by anyone at KNR that you

23 relied on for entering into the loan with

24 Liberty Capital?

25 A No one —-- no one particular statement.
MIdeps@uslegalsupport.com U. 5. LEGAL SUPPORT Phone: 888.644.8080
Ann Arbar | Detrait | Flint | Jackson Bingham Farms/Southficld | Grand Rapids Lansing | Mt, Clemens | Saginaw | Troy

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts

T [T




CV-2016-09-3928 GALLAGHER, PAUL 11/07/2018 16:58:14 PM DPEL Page 117 of 142

JOHNSON, MATTHEW W.
07/06/2018 Page 265

1 A Yes.

2 Q And they may have told you about Preferred
3 Capital too if that's how Paul remembers it,
4 true?

5 A Yeah, I just don't remember the name Preferred

6 Capital, so I —-- being mentioned, but I feel

7 like I've heard of that company.

8 0 And you weren't relying on any advertisements
9 or mailers or anything like that, true?

10 A No, nothing 1like -- you know, nothing that

11 sticks out at you or anything, you know what I
12 mean?

13 Q Okay.
14 A Nothing like that.

15 Q And you don't know what any other potential

16 plaintiff may have relied on or not relied on
17 in entering into their loan, true?
18 Jiy No, sir.
19 Q My statement was true?
20 A Yeah. Yeah,
21 Q Okay. So I'm just trying to find out: Are you
22 - trying to claim there was something that the
23 defendants told you about Liberty Capital that
24 you relied on that you found out later wasn't
25 true?
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1 9] Okay. Did you ask any questions about it?
2 A I mean, I locked over what I was signing, but
3 now that I think about it, six years later, I
4 probably should have read it a little bit
5 better.
6 Q Okay. But what I'm asking you is: When you
7 were given the name Liberty Capital from Jenna,
8 did you think hey, why didn't they give me two
9 names, why didn't they give me three names?
10 A No, I didn't think about it at all, actually.
11 Q Did you think about wow, Paul told me Preferred
12 Capital several months ago, now they're saying
13 Liberty Capital? Did you think about that?
14 A No, because I don't remember Paul telling me
1o about Preferred Capital.
16 0 Did you ask Jenna or Paul or anyone at KNR,
17 "Hey, are there any more competitive loans out
18 there?"
19 A At that time I didn't even think to ask such a
20 thing.
21 Q Ckay. Did anycne at KNR tell you that the
22 loans from Liberty Capital were the best loans
23 out there?
24 yi No. They can't be the best loans.
25 Q Okay. So knowing that they can't be the best
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1 But let's Jjust call it. We can call it a
2 day. No need to go another five minutes.

3 MR. BEST: Just so the
4 record's clear, I want this fellow's nctes --
5 MR, MANNION: Yes.
€ MR. BEST: —-- Dbefore we
¥ reconvene the deposition he's withheld and he
8 didn't respond.
9 THE WITNESS:. .They're my own
10 personal notes.
11 MR. PATTAKOS: - Well, T
12 don't -~
13 MR. BEST: I don't care
14 what you think they are. They are court
15 decuments and we're going to get them and
16 they're going to be in our possession before
17 you're sitting back in front of a court
18 reporter on video.
19 MR, PATTAKOS: We'll talk. We
20 can deal with that off the record.
21 And, you know, I just want to say that,
22 gentlemen, you've convinced me 1'm going to
23 withdraw as counsel in this case, as it's
24 become clear to me over the course of this
25 deposition that I should give up my practice
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
SUMMIT COUNTY, OHIO

MEMBER WILLIAMS, et al., CASE NO. CV-2016-09-3928
Plaintiffs, JUDGE JAMES A. BROGAN
V.
DEFENDANTS’ AMENDED NOTICE OF

DEPOSITION OF PLAINTIFF MATTHEW
JOHNSON DUCES TECUM

KISLING, NESTICO & REDICK, LLC, et al.,

Defendants.

Please take notice that, pursuant to the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure, Defendants
Kisling, Nestico & Redick, [L.C, Alberto R. Nestico, and Robert Redick, by and through
undersigned counsel, will take the discovery deposition of Plaintiff Matthew Johnson, upon
oral examination, on Friday, July 6, 2018 at 10:30 a.m. at the offices of Kisling, Nestico &
Redick, 3412 West Market St., Akron, OH 44333 (Phone: 330-8692-9007), before a notary
public. The deposition will be taken stenographically and by audiovisual reporting. Said
deposition will continue from day to day uniil completed.

In addition to appearing for oral examination, it is requested that the deponent bring with

him fo the deposition the documents listed on Exhibit A attached hereto.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ James M. Popson

James M. Popson (0072773)
Sutter O'Connell

1301 East 9th Street

3600 Erieview Tower
Cleveland, OH 44114

{216) 928-2200 phone

(216) 928-4400 facsimile
ipopson@sutter-law.com

Counsel for Defendants
Kisling, Nestico & Redick LLC, Alberto R.
Nestico, and Robert Redick

EXHIBIT

C
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EXHIBIT A

A. DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of these requests, unless otherwise stated, the following terms shall
have the meanings indicated:

1.

“Plaintiff” or "you” or “your” means Plaintiff Matthew Johnson, as well as all of his
employees, attorneys, agents, partners, members, affiliates, representatives, and
all other persons acting on his behalf.

“KNR” means Defendant Kisling, Nestico & Redick, LLC, and all of its officers,
directors, employees, agents, partners, members, shareholders, affiliates,
representatives, and all other persons acting on its behalf.

“Nestico” means Defendant Alberio R. Nestico, a member of KNR.
“Redick” means Defendant Robert W. Redick.

‘Communication” means any written or oral statement or notation of any nature,
including but: not Ilimited to conversations, correspondence, dialogue,
discussions, e-mails, interviews, consuliations, meetings, telephone calls, letters,
telecopies, telephone logs, diaries, agreements and other understandings
between or among two or more persons, and all other forms of oral or written
exprassion by which information may be conveyed.

“‘Document” or “documents” means any and all records, statements, memoranda,
reports, letters, notes, messages, written communications, correspondence,
emails, text messages, social media communications (e.g., Twitter and
Facebook), contracts, forms, manuals, charts, graphs, data sheets,
spreadsheets, bulletins, computer runs, journals, ledgers, books, bills,
transcripts, checks, drafts, photographs, audio and/or video tape recordings,
mechanical and/or electrical records, electronic documents, computer
documents, punch cards, print-out sheets, notes, bocks of account, brochures,
circulars, magazines, notebooks, diaries, calendars, appointment books, tables,
papers, minutes of meetings of any kind, drafts of any documents, data
processing disks or tapes or computer produced inferpretations of the above, and
any and all tangible items or written matter whatsoever of any kind or nature in
Plaintiff s possession or control or within the possession and control of Plainfiff's
attorney, agents, or other representative of Plaintiff and Plaintiff's attorney.

“‘Relating to” or “relate to” shall include, without limitation, embodying, pertaining
to, reflecting, referring to, regarding, referencing, concerning, constituting,
comprising, discussing, or having any bearing upon or logical or factual
connection with the subject matter in question.
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B. DOCUMENTS TO BE PRODUCED

You are requested to bring with you any and all documents in your possession of in the
possession of your attorney relating to the following:

1.

All documents relating to income earned by Plaintiff from January 1, 2013 to the
present, including, but not limited to, Plaintiffs federal and state income tax
forms, W-2 forms, 1099 forms, payroll forms, and payroll stubs.

All documents relating to communications betwsen Plaintiff and KNR at any time.

All docurnents relating to communications between Plaintiff and Nestico at any
time.

All documents relating to communications between Plaintiff and Redick at any
time.

Any and all documents you have reviewed in preparation for your deposition.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that on this 19" day of June, 2018, the Amended Notice of Deposition of
Plaintiff Matthew Johnson Duces Tecum was filed electronically. Notice of this filing will be sent
by operation of the Court's electronic filing system to all parties indicated on the electronic filing
receipt. All other parties will be served by regular U.S. Mail. Parties may access this filing

through the Court’s electronic filing system.

/s/ James M. Popson
James M. Popson (0072773)
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EXHIBIT “D”

Plaintiff Johnson’s Testimony Concerning “Recommendation” for Liberty Capital Loan

1. Defendants Nestico and Redick did NOT recommend a loan

Q.

A,

And did either of those two [Rob Nestico or Rob Redick] ever tell you that
you should use Liberty Capital?

Not personally, no. (Zd. atp. 131, 11. 2-4).

2, Johnson’s inability to remember who recommended a loan

Q.

R O

o LR

Okay. Do you recall any lawyer from KNR recommending that you use
Liberty Capital or giving you advice about the loan?

Yes.

Who?

I don’t remember the gentleman’s name, but it was not Paul Steele.
Okay. But it was a lawyer?

I don’t even know if he was actually an attorney or like a clerk or
whatever they would be called. Somebody that, like, comes out right
directly to you or whatever.

And you’re talking about the very first contact you ever had with KNR?
Yes, sir.

Okay. Which would have been in February of 20127

Yes, sir,

But your loan wasn’t until many months later, correct?

A couple months, yeah. (Johnson dep., p. 28, 11. 14-25, p. 29, 11. 1-9).

You have no memory of any specific advice or recommendations given to
you by Paul Steele?

Not word for word.

EXHIBIT
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Q. No. You said you don’t remember what he said word for word, so what do
you remember generally?

Oh. About, like, the whole loan or whatever?
What Paul Steele told you/
I don’t remember Paul Steele ever telling me anything about the loan.

Okay.

e Lo p

Like I said, I think it was like a clerk or something like that or - - I don’t
know if the guy that came to my house was even an attorney or not. I
don’t remember,

Q. Okay. He did not represent himself as an attorney, did he?

I don’t think he did, no. (Johnson dep., p. 31, 1. 1-23).

Q. Well, what do you remember - - this gentleman who came out to see you,
what do you remember him telling you about the loan?

A I don’t remember him telling - - what he told me about the loan. (Johnson
dep., p. 33, 11. 8-12).

Q. Do you recall Paul Steele advising against the loan?

A. I don’t remember that either.

Q. Do you remember him advising for the loan?

A, I don’t remember. (Johnson dep., p. 48, 11, 1-5).

Q. Do you remember Paul actually recommending that you take a loan,

giving you advice to take a loan?
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A, He said if I - - if I felt - - if [ felt it necessary or whatever. [ don’t
remember what my response was, probably like what the heck. You know,
whatever. (Johnson dep., p. 161, 11, 1-7).

3. The Loan was “Convenient”

Q. I'm asking what statmeents, if any, by KNR did you rely on in entering
into your loan with Liberty Capital?

A I don’t know if it was a particular statement, but it just — more of like a
convenience, [ guess, to me.

Q. Explain what you mean.

Just that it was convenient. It was there, you know, why not take it.
(Johnson dep., p. 262, 11. 11-19)

Q. Okay. And other than the fact that it was convenient and it was there, was
there any other statement by anyone at KNR that you relied on for entering
into the loan with Liberty Capital?

A. Not one - not one particular statement. (Johnson dep., p. 262, 1. 20-25).

Q. Name any statement other than hey, Liberty Capital’s available. Any other
statement than that? Did you rely on any other statement than that?

A. [ didn’t - - I wouldn’t say relied, but I - - just the satement that, you know,
that you're - - T forget how it was said where you have to - - you know, it’s
available, but you have to pay back money with money. It just secmed
like, you know, whatever, but you’re not always thinking when you’re
going through that particular time or whatever.

Q. Well, you’re not saying that Jenna by sending that to you was trying to
take advantage of you?

A. Oh, I'm not saying that she particularly tried to. Jenna, if [ remember
correctly, Jenna was very nice to me.

And I think you referred to her as awesome. Right?

A. Yeah. She’s pretty cool. (Johnson dep., p. 263, 11. 1-21).

Q. Okay. But I'm trying to find out did Paul or anybody at KNR specifically
recommend hey, you should take a loan out with Liberty and here’s why?
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A. I wouldn’t say that it was put in those particular words.

Q. How was it put?

A. I don’t remember,

Q. Well, I'm trying to find out. Did you rely on anything KNR did other than
giving you the name of the company that - -

A. Not particularly. (Johnson dep., p. 264, 11. 10-21).

Q. Okay. Did anyone at KNR tell you that the loans from Liberty Capital
were the best loans out there?

A, No. They can’t be the best loans.
Okay. So knowing that they can’t be the best loans, why did you go with
them?

A, Good question,

Q. Just because it was casy?

A. Counvenience, I guess. (Johnson dep., p. 276, 11. 21-25, p. 277, 1. 1-4).

4. KNR’s recommendations consisted of informing Johnson of the possibility of a loan

after Johnson inquired

Q.
A

He [Paul Steele] didn’t push you to take a loan, did he?
It wasn’t forced on me, no.

Are you saying that he recommended that you take a loan or just it’s up to
you? :

It was a recommendation, but it was almost like it was like an option.
Okay. And when you say it was a recommendation, what did he say?

Just, like, if I need a little bit of money or whatever to tie me over or
whatever.

That you could take a loan?
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A. Correct. (Johnson dep., p. 161, 11, 8-19).

Q. And nobody pushed you into getting the loan, did they?

A No.

Q. And, in fact, you’re the one who asked Jenna about the process, true?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. And you reviewed all of the documents and signed them, correct?

A. Yes, sir. (Johnson dep., p. 220, 11. 6-14).

Q. Okay. So what specific recommendation, if any, did Paul give you as it
relates to Liberty Capital?

A, I just told you. A $250 loan.

Q. He said that it’s available?

A. Right.

Q. Okay. And he didn’t twist your arm and he didn’t push you one way or
another as to whether you take it or don’t take it. Fair?

A. Yeah, T agree with that. (Johnson dep., p. 236, 11. 25, p. 237, 11. 1-9).

Q. 50 are you alleging that simply advising clients of the potential for a loan
was the recommendation that KNR made to its clients?

A. Yeah. (Johnson dep., p. 246, 11. 13-16).

5. KNR may have mentioned other loan options to Johnson
Q. Do you remember the name Preferred Capital?
A. I’ve heard that name before but [ don’t know if it was there. (Johnson

dep., p. 162, 11. 21-23).
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Q. So you entered in - - KNR told you about the existence of Liberty, true?

Yes.

Q. And they may have told you about Preferred Capital too if that’s how Paul
remembers it, true?

A. Yeah, I just don’t remember the name Preferred Capital, so I - - being
mentioned, but I feel like I've heard of that company. (Johnson dep., p.
264, 11. 24-25, p. 265, 1. 1-7).

0. Johnson did not rely on any advertisements when entering into the loan
Q. And you weren’t relying on any advertisements or mailers or anything like
that, true?
A, No, nothing like - - you know, nothing like that sticks out at you or

anything, you know what I mean? (Johnson dep., p. 265, 11. 8-12).

7. Johnson signed agreement stating that his KNR attorney did not make any
recommendations

Q. Do you have any memory of anybody at KNR, whether it’s a lawyer, a
paralegal, or anybody else who you believe is associated with KNR, do
you have any memory of anything they told you about a loan with Liberty
Capital?

A. The only thing that sticks out about the loan that anybody told me was the
interest rate because it was astronomical. And that’s the only thing I
remember. I need to pay this off as fast as possible because of the interest
rate,

Q. Okay. And did they tell you that before or after you signed?

Before. (Johnson dep., p. 33, 11. 13-25, p. 34, 1. 1),

Q. This isn’t what they’re telling you. This is you saying, “My attorney has
made no recommendations.” Did I read that?

A, Yeah, you read that.
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2

o

-

o

I S

Qo O P

oor o P

Okay. So this is you making representations that you then initialed and
signed, correct?

Yes, sir.

Were those representations true? Yes or no.

I don’t really think so now that I think about it.

Okay. Then tell me what recommendations they gave you.

I don’t remember. It was six years ago. (Johnson dep., p. 227, IL. 11-24).

“While T am not endorsing or recommending this transaction.” Did [ read
that part of the sentence correctly?

Yes, sir.
And it’s signed by KNR, true?
Yes, sir,

So that would be referencing KNR was not endorsing or recommending
this transaction, correct?

Yes, sir.
And you initialed that knowing that, true?

Yes, sir. (Johnson dep., p. 243, 11. 10-22).

Yet in paragraph 124 you’re claiming in a court document that this was a
false representation. Do you still maintain that?

Yes, sir.
What was false about it?
I don’t remember.

You can’t tell us what was false about it?
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A. No, sir.
Q. And if that statement is actually true, would you agree to withdraw that
claim?
A. No.
Q. You wouldn’t withdraw that one either, even if it’s not true?
A, No, sir. (Johnson dep., p. 244, 11. 12-25).
8. Mr. Johnson does not know what, if any, “kickback” payments Defendants received

in connection with the loan

Q.

2

O SR S S

What kickback payment did they receive?
I don’t know exactly what they received.
Why would you say it? [in the Complaint]
1 didn’t say that,

This 18 - -

This is written up and I went over it with my attorney before I - - we filed
it or whatever.

Well, you didn’t want things that were false to be filed, did you?

No.

Okay. What evidence did you have that they received such a - -
Mr. Pattakos: Tom.

- - kickback - -

Mr. Pattakos: For heaven’s sake, he’s answered this question a
hundred times.

Sir.

The only evidence that I’ve seen - - the evidence that I’ve scen is the
emails between other attorneys in the law firm and Mr. Nestico that were -
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- they were trying to show their displeasure or their not agreeing to what,
you know, what they thought was going on or whatever.

Q. Did any of those emails indicate that any of the defendants were receiving
a kickback?
A. I don’t - - I don’t remember. It’s been I don’t know how long since I saw

those emails. (Johnson dep., p. 238, 11. 6-24).
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1 STATE OF OHIO, )
COUNTY OF SUMMIT. ) 5S¢
2

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
MEMBER WILLIAMS, et al.,)
)
Plaintiffs, )
)
vs. ) JUDGE PAUL GALLAGHER

6 y CASE NO. Cv-2016-09-3928

)

)

)

)

KISLING, NESTICO &
7  REDICK, LLC, et al.,

8 Defendants.,

9

10 THE VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF MATTHEW W. JOHNSON
FRIDAY, JULY 6, 2018

11 - - - = =

12

13 The videotaped deposition of MATTHEW W.

14 JOHNSCON, called by the Defendants for examination

15 pursuant to the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure,

1le taken before me, Lhe undersigned, Sarah R. Drown,

17 Registered Professional Reporter and Notary Public
18 within and for the State of Chio, taken at the

19 offices of Kisling, Nestico & Redick, LLC, 3412

20 West Market Street, Fairlawn, Ohio, commencing at

21 10:52 a.m., the day and date above set forth.

22
23
24

25

MIdepsi@uslegalsupport.com U. 8. LEGAI SUPPORT Phone: 888.644.8080
Ann Arbor | Detroit | Flint | Jackson Bingham Farms/Seuthfield | Grand Rapids Lansing | Mt Clemens | Saginaw | Troy
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1 APPEARANCES:
2
On behalf of the Plaintiff:
3 Peter Pattakos, Esqg.
4 PATTAKOS LAW FIRM LLC
101 Ghent Read
5 Fairlawn, Ohic 44333
{330) 836-8533
6 peterlpattakoslaw.com
7
On behalf of Defendant Kisling,
8 Nestico & Redick:
9 Thomas P. Mannion, Esq.
LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
10 1375 East 9th Street, Suite 2250
Cleveland, Ohio 44114
11 (216) 344-9422
tom.mannicon@lewisbrisbois.com
12
- and -
13
James M. Popson, Esqg.
14 SUTTER Q'CONNELL CO.
3600 Erieview Tower
15 1301 East 9th Street
Cleveland, Ohio 44114
le (216) 928-4504
Jjpopson@sutter-law.com
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
MIdeps@ustegalsnpport.com U. S. LEGAL SUPPORT Phone: 888.044.8080
Ann Arbor | Detroit | Flint | Jackson Bingham Farms/Southfield | Grand Rapids Lansing | Mt. Clemens | Saginaw | Troy

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts

T




CV-2016-09-3928

GALLAGHER, PAUL 11/07/2018 16:58:14 PM DPEL

JOHNSON, MATTHEW W.

07/06/2018

Page 135 of 142

Page 3

2

3

10

11

12

14

15

16

17

13

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 APPEARANCES CONTINUED:

On behalf of Defendant Rob A. Nestico,
David M. Best, Esdq,

DAVID M. BEST CO., LPA
4900 West Bath Road
Akron, Ohic 44333
{330) 6€5-1855
dimb@dmbestlaw. comn

On behalf of Defendant Robert W. Redick, Esq.:

Daniel P. Goetz, Esqg.

WEISMAN, KENNEDY & BERRIS CC., LPA
1600 Midland Building

101 West Prospect Avenue
Cleveland, OChio 44115%

(216) 781-1111
dgoetz@weismanlaw.com

1z ALSO PRESENT:

Ivan Bercian, Videographer
Rob A. Nestico, ksqg.
John J. Reagan, ksqg.

Robert Redick, Esqg.

Esqg.:
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1 Q Okay. Do you know what potential class they

2 are representatives of?

3 A Class C.

4 Q No, you're Class C, right, sir?

5 A Yeah,

6 Q Okay. Do you know whether Naomi Wright, Member
7 Williams, or Thera Reid are purported

g representatives or representatives of any other
9 classes?
10 A Yeah, I would assume so, but T
11 o You don't pay attention to those?

12 A Yeah, I do what I'm told to, man.
13 Q Okay. Do you view yourself as a potential
14 member of the other classes in this case other
15 than Class C?

16 A No, I don't helieve so.

17 Q In what -- in your -- what's your understanding
18 of what Class C is?

13 P2y I could have told you Tuesday when I reviewed
20 everything. But the fireworks just blew my

21 mind away. Sorry.

22 0 I hope we don't have a trial close to the

23 Fourth of July.

24 A I know.

25 o] Okay. So as you sit here today, can you
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1 describe for us what Class C is, who those
2 potential members are?

3 A I'm not going to lie to you.

4 Q I'm not asking vou to lie. You're under oath.
5 I'm asking: What's your understanding of what
6 Class C is?

7 A I can't -— I can't -- I can't explain that to
8 you right now.

9 Q Do you think that a class representative has a

10 duty to understand what the class is?

11 A Yeah.

12 Q Is there some reason you don't?

13 A Because I'm just overwhelmed right now.

14 Q Overwhelmed with what?

15 A Just being here in general.

ie Q Okay. So do you think that a class

17 representative should be able to answer

18 guestions in front of a jury and a judge or at
19 a deposition in order to represent the cther
20 class members?

21 A If I had known I was able to bring my notes, T
22 would be fine.

23 Q Who told you you couldn't bring your notes?

24 A I didn't -- I didn't know. T didn't even think

25 about it. T just left them right on the
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1 counter.
2 Q Do you know whether you're allowed to bring
3 your notes up to the stand at trial?
4 A I don't know. Are you?
5 Q I'm asking you. Do you khow 1f you are?
6 A I don't know.
7 Q Okay. Well, if you don't have your notes --
8 A I don't —— I don't usually get into these kind
9 of things, you know?
10 O If you don't have your notes at trial, how are
11 you going to represent the class?
12 A Lots of studying.
13 @) Ckay. But you didn't do the studying even
14 though you knew we were going to be asking you
15 questions about this today?
l6 A I reviewed everything on Tuesday.
17 Q Did you know you forgot it already when you
18 walked in here?
19 A It was sitting on the counter when I left the
20 house, yeah, but I didn't think I was allowed
21 to bring them. Sorry.
22 Q Okay. But what I'm saying is as you left your
23 house to come here today, did you know vyou had
24 forgot the information you looked at several
25 days previous?
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1 A I didn't forget it. I left it there because I
2 didn't think I was allowed to have it. I
3 didn't know what the rules were.

4 Q The information that is written down in those
5 documents, did you know you had forgotten that
6 information when you left to come here today?
7 A Not intentionally. I mean, my mind is drawing
8 a blank because I'm nct a very good test taker.
9 Q Okay. This isn't a test. We're asking you
10 what your allegations are against the
11 defendants and what your basis for those
12 allegations are, and you can't give us those
12 without your notes?
14 MR. PATTAKOS: Objection.
15 A I know what it is in layman's terms. All of
16 your other questions ~-
17 That's what I want to know.
138 A All your other questions --
19 0 What are layman's terms?
20 What are layman's terms of your
21 allegatiocons against the defendants?
22 A This was discussed a long time ago.
23 Q What is your understanding in layman's terms —-
24 A The —-
25 Q -— of the allegations --
A ?:%:T:)g;ﬂ:??Imhtncﬁﬂiacksm. Binglmm%asr}:é/ES(zi}t%nggg rgﬁd Rapids Lansing | Mt. C]enl:el:?s"]c::saag?ﬁégﬁ'f‘ggg
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1 than your name and -- well, let me ask you
2 this: What information did you provide to
3 Mr. Pattakos that is referenced in the
4 complaint, do you know? Information you
5 provided that he didn't already have.
6 A I think he already had everything he needed.
7 o Do you happen tce know where he got it?
8 A No.
9 Q Okay. By the way, what is your responsibility
10 as a class representative as it relates to
11 settlement? Do you know?
12 A I have that answer in my notes. Does that
13 help?

14 Q You do?
15 A Yeah.

16 o) Okay. That will. We'll take a look at those

17 notes and maybe come back then.

18 Why don't you turn to page 5. Well,

19 before you do, let me ask you another question.
20 Now, earlier you said you don't really

21 remember what Paul ssid teo you, if at all,

22 regarding Liberty Capital other than pay it off
23 as quick as you can because of the interest.

24 Is that fair?

25 A Yes, sir.
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1 It's still not ethically moral.
2 0] Okay.

3 A If that's the right way to say it.

4 @] Well, do you know as a class representative

5 whether you can sue a lawyer for damages for an
6 alleged ethical viclation as opposed to

7 actually keing damaged financially?

8 y2y Like in a separate suit or?
9 Q In this suit.

10 yiy I don't know. I would have to review 1f that's

11 in my notes or not.
1z ' MR. PATTAKOS: We already won
13 the motion to strike con this, Tom.

14 Q Okay.

15 MR. PATTAKOS: We already won
16 this legal issue.

17 MR. MANNION: Stop it.

13 Please.

19 Q If this would have been a reasocnable interest

29 rate and reascnable fees, are you saying your
21 only damage would be from the ethical part of
22 itz

23 A No, I'm not saying that at all.

24 Q Okay. If this was reasonable fees and

25 reasonable interest, what would your damage be?
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1 we?
2 A I would -- makes -- makes sense.

3 Q And what evidence did you have that KNR

4 defendants knew KNR clients would be unable to
9 repay their loans until their lawsuit resoclved?
6 Cid you have any?

7 A Yeah.

8 Q What was 1it?

9 A T don't remember, man. Like I said, I have
10 notes at home.

11 G Okay. If you lock at page 34, paragraph 124.

12 And in the middle of this, it says that the KNR
13 attorney stated "I am not endorsing oxr

14 recommending this transaction.”

15 Did T read that correctly?

16 A Correct.

17 Q Ckay. And is that the same as what occurred in

18 your case, they were not endorsing or

19 recommending the transaction, they put that in

20 the loan papers? Do you know?

21 A I don't remember.

22 Q Do you recall?

23 A T don't remember.

24 0 You're not sure?

25 A No, sir.
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